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CHAIR CARROLL: . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of September 4, 2013 is now in
session. The first thing I will request, if anyone has any cell phones or anything that make noise
out there, please disconnect it for the remainder of this meeting. I'm Councilmember
Robert Carroll, Chair of the Land Use Committee. With us this morning, we have voting
Members, Council Chair Gladys Baisa; Vice-Chair of the Land Use Committee, Don Guzman -VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Good morning, Chair
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CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. Victorino -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. White -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. Hokama -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excused at this time is.. .we have with us, Ms. Cochran. Department of
Corporation Counsel, Jeff Ueoka
MR. UEOKA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: --Deputy Corporation Counsel. Executive Branch, we have Jo-Ann Ridao, the
Director of Housing and Human Concerns.
MS. RIDAO: Good morning.
CHAIR CARROLL: Will Spence will be joining us shortly. We have the Fire Chief representative;
Director of Environmental Management or their representative; our Police representative;
David Goode, Director of Public Works; Director of Water Supply; and the Director of Parks and
Recreation is on call. We have Vince Bagoyo, the consultant for the project, Bagoyo
Development Consulting Group. Committee Staff, we have Clarita Balala, Committee
Secretary; Carla Nakata, Legislative Secretary [sic]. Today we have one item on the agenda for
consideration, LU-3 1 [sic], Affordable Housing Projects (Chapter 201H, Hawaii Revised
Statutes) (Waikapu Gardens, Phase II). We will now accept public testimony. For individuals
who will be testifying in the Chamber, please sign up at the desk located on the eighth-floor
lobby just outside the Chamber door. If you'll be testifying from one of the remote locations
specified on the meeting agenda, please sign up with the district staff office at that location.
Testimony will be limited to items on the agenda today. Each testifier will be allowed to testify
on the item for up to three minutes with one minute to conclude if necessary. When testifying,
please state your name and the name of any organization you are representing. We have a
-3-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 4, 2013

connection to the district offices so residents from those sites can testify. Chair will now ask
Lanai Office, are you there? Could you please identify yourself, and do you have anyone
waiting to testify?
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .

MS. FERNANDEZ: Aloha, this is Denise Fernandez from the Lanai Office, and we have no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai Office, please identify yourself, and do you have anyone
waiting to testify?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair This is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here waiting to
testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hana Office, identify yourself, and do you have anyone waiting to testify?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office, and I have no one waiting
to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Paul Laub; he'll be followed by Vanessa Medeiros.
MR. LAUB: Aloha mai kakou. I am Paul Laub, and I am testifying here, in this specific case, because I
think it's possible that we're missing a bet. And when I say that, I would like to say,
specifically, that more bike paths and walking paths are required for all future developments. I
just came back from bicycling from Vienna to Budapest, Hungary. And I was really struck about
the development of the bike paths, the culture for bike paths, walking and trees; and I think it's
something that we really want to look more into. And that's simply my testimony, and I have
some pictures to pass around. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Seeing none...oh, excuse me. Could you...Mr. Victorino?
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. And thank you, Paul, for being here today,
yeah. When you talk about walking and bike paths, are you referring to within the subdivision or
are you referring to outside of the subdivision so it's interconnectable to other areas?
MR. LAUB: Thank you very much. I am actually specifically speaking outside of the subdivision
where the subdivision abuts the roads. And it's at that point that there should be a separation
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between bike path, vehicle and walkers. And it'll show on these pictures that I have sent around
here, there's a path for bikes; and next to it is the path for walking and then there's trees and then
the cars are separated. And I think that if we could, at this point here forward, require more bike
paths on each thing, I think this is gonna be a tremendous development for our future.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And I want you to understand, too, that as you'll see
later on in the presentation, there is a walking path through the subdivision leading to the
existing Waikapu Gardens that will lead down to the proposed commercial area which was down
in Waiko in the corner there; that's part of the package that were showed to us and then will be
shown to you later today. As far as the rest, Mr. Chair, I think we're gonna have to look upon
not only the developer, but the County to help us do things like that, because Waiko and Waiale
are the two main thoroughfares that come into this area. And, right now, there is enough space
to do it, but it'd just be matter of what we wanna do once we wanna expand the roadway to four
lanes. 'Cause Waiale will be a connector from Wailuku all the way past Waikapu and come out
on Honoapiilani Highway. So just wanna let you know that there is some consideration, but
thank you for this information.
MR. LAUB: Great. There's a great opportunity. Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Vanessa Medeiros; she'll be followed by Doug Spencer.
MS. MEDEIROS: Aloha, good morning. My name is Vanessa Medeiros, and I'm speaking as a private
citizen and an advocate of affordable housing. I'm happy to support this project because it is
what I call, "appropriate affordable housing", which is housing that is designed or provided for
its intended market - in this case, single-family homes for families at a price that those families
will be able to afford and still put food on the table. The developer, Jesse Spencer, has a proven
track record in providing affordable housing and a deep commitment to the working families of
Maui; therefore, I ask you to support this project. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Doug Spencer; he'll be followed by John Surina.
MR. SPENCER: Thank you. Chairman Carroll, Members of the Council, it's a real pleasure and an
honor to be able to present this project to you guys today. And Mr. Bagoyo and the other
consultants will be giving you all the technical aspects of that project. But I just wanted to get up
here, you know, in the beginning, and really tell you and the members of the public, you know,
who are here, what the heart of, really, this project is. As people know that my parents have
been building affordable housing in Hawaii for a very long time. In fact, they started building
affordable housing before people called it, "affordable housing". Their goal was always to build
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a quality home that working people could afford to buy. And some of you may or may not
know, but my parents came to Hawaii on Oahu in 1964, and they built their first houses there.
And at that time, little did we know, that we'd be appearing in front of you guys here today,
almost 50 years later, over a thousand homes later, asking to build another 48 homes. And some
people would say, well, haven't you built enough homes already? Well, my answer to that is,
check with the people who still want a house, the affordable home that working class people
need here on Maui. And so that's what we're here to do is to do another project, it's 100 percent
affordable. And I don't know, I haven't checked the history, it may or may not be the first
100 percent affordable housing project by a private developer on Maui. I just don't know. I've
never heard of one before. And so that's what we're proposing for you today. And I also just
wanted to thank the tremendous cooperation we've gotten, you know, from the County on this
starting with Jo-Ann Ridao who shares our passion and heart for affordable housing. She's a
tremendous asset to the County of Maui. Mayor Arakawa, you know, some of us may have our
petty little political differences with the Mayor, but he's a good man with a good heart and he
shares our passion for affordable housing. And so they've worked together, you know, to
provide this project to you guys. But, ultimately, the decision lies with each and every one of
you. You are the ultimate decision makers in this project. And, to be quite frank with you, I
think your hearts in the same place ours are. We trust your decision whatever that may be.
Whether it's for us or against, we actually trust the decision you're about to make; and we place
this project in your very capable hands. And at the end of the day, if you approve this project,
the true winners here is not gonna be the Spencer family, it's not gonna be the Mayor, it's not
gonna be the Council, it's gonna be the working people of Maui who will have that opportunity
to buy a home and raise their families in a quality neighborhood. So my encouragement to you
here today is, let's get this thing passed as we have proposed it. If you want changes, come to us,
we'll work with you on it. But let's get it passed quickly and let's get this thing built and get
families moved in. And thank you very, very much for your time here today.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you, Mr. Spencer. I had a question when I was down
there and you didn't have an answer, but I think you have an answer for us now. My question
was, would this subdivision have the same dividing wall, that white wall, for the area above,
between the cemetery and the homes and around the other side along Waiko Road fronting
Waiale?
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MR. SPENCER: Yes, sir. Yeah, we've checked on that, we will be providing the white vinyl fencing
just as we've done in Waikapu Gardens. We believe keeping that privacy there for everyone is
very important and for the safety of children, the backyards as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And that will separate...keep some separation
between the subdivision and the graveyard, which is very important.
MR. SPENCER: Yes, sir, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: Next is John Surina; he'll be followed by Jeff Gray.
MR. SURINA: Good morning, ladies and gentlemen. My name is John Surina, and I'm here to support
the proposed Phase II, Waikapu Gardens. And I'm here on my own free time. I've been a Maui
County Police Officer for the past ten years. My fiancé, Lisa here who's here with me, and I are
expecting our first child this February. We're both college educated, hardworking, children of
former career school teachers; and, yet, we cannot afford a home here on Maui to raise our child
along with our two rescue dogs. Many of my friends and coworkers reside in the current
Waikapu Gardens development, and all of them are so very thankful to the Spencers for building
such a good community. In my experience as a patrol officer in the Wailuku area, I rarely
received a call for service in the Waikapu Gardens area. When I did get a call, it was likely from
a responsible parent whose child was out past curfew or simply a neighbor calling about loud
talking from a birthday party that lasted a little longer than planned. I see every day on my drive
to work the new industrial and residential infrastructure that's been put into place in the Wailuku
and Waikapu area, making this the ideal location for additional affordable single-family
residences. The dream of homeownership for one's growing family might otherwise be out of
reach for those, such as myself, who are willing to serve the community. The housing
depression for the past four years is easing and prices are becoming less affordable day by day. I
strongly urge the Committee to think future forward for all the responsible, hard working class
ohanas of Maui and grant the Spencers the opportunity to positively change the residential
landscape here on Maui. The families who have benefitted from the previous projects have
expressed nothing but gratitude. And let us give them the chance to help more of Maui's
deserving families take a step closer towards living in a good community to raise their children.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. SURINA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata?
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MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Jeff Gray, to be followed by Cornelius Patrick.
MR. GRAY: Good morning, Chairman, Members of the Committee. I just wanted to.. .my name's
Jeff Gray. I'm a self-employed, tree trimmer here on the islands. I've lived here a long time.
Never been able to afford a house. And it'd be nice to afford one. I would like to get one of
these houses. But if doesn't happen, I also know a lot of people who've lived in that other
Spencer Homes subdivisions. Jesse Spencer and his family have helped a lot of people, and I
know a lot of people who just wouldn't have a home if it wasn't for them. And I just kinda
looked over the notes here of which you guys were looking at today. A lot of it looks like just
permit exemptions and stuff like that...or fee exemptions I should say not permit exemptions, fee
exemptions. And I just know, you know, the Spencers; again, I know that they're doing that
because they wanna pass on the savings to the people who are going to buy the homes and they
wanna make it more affordable. When they asked me to testify, I thought, well, you know, what
am I gonna say? But then I thought, well, who could really be against affordable housing
anyway. I mean everybody's gonna be for it. So, you know, I just echo Doug's sentiments to
you. I know you guys are gonna make the right decision whatever it is, you'll have reasons
either way. And God bless you guys; thank you for the opportunity.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. I'm now
going to ask the remote sites if they have anyone to testify. Hana, do you have anyone waiting to
give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai, is there anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, is there anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Cornelius Patrick; he'll be followed by Mele Strickland.
MR. PATRICK: Good morning. Thank you for your time. My name's Cornelius Patrick, and I've been
a registered nurse in the State Hawaii since 1995. My wife is a teacher with University of
Manoa, an outreach program on both Kauai and Maui. We've been very interested in affordable
housing. I think that the JES Corporation has proven itself worthy. I would just like to say that
as I read through this quickly this morning that I agree with Mr. Gray that the proposed
exemptions would definitely be passed on. I think that they've proven themselves over and over
again in their projects that they do pass these savings on to the people, to the working people of
Kauai. We don't see that in a lot of our projects here. We see a lot for profit, you know. And it
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does good to see that somebody actually really does care about the people of Maui and really
wants to make a difference for the working people not just people from the Mainland who wanna
have a nice, big house on the ocean. And I appreciate that you give people like me and my wife
the opportunity to afford a home. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Mele Strickland; she'll be followed by Glenn Adolpho.
MS. STRICKLAND: Good morning, and thank you for letting me speak to you. My name is
Mele Strickland and I'm an Army mom. And my reasons for being here kinda selfish because
my son served on the front lines in Afghanistan. And, during that time, I always would try to
think of things to encourage him and keep him hopeful. And one of those reasons why, things
that I would do is have him focus on a home when he came back. All that he was doing out there
that he could get a home through the GI Bill. And the Spencers are wonderful people. They've
helped so many of my friends, and so that's why I'm here today. And I just wanna thank you for
listening.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Glenn Adolpho; he'll be followed by Joseph Scalzo who's the last
person who has signed up to testify so far.
MR. ADOLPHO: Good morning, Committee Chair Carroll, Members of the Council. My name is
Glenn Adolpho. I'm very lucky and blessed to say that I am a homeowner at Waikapu Gardens
Phase I. And I was actively involved with affordable housing way back when the workforce
housing policy was being discussed. Myself, along with other members of the community,
church groups, went out to raise the awareness of the need for affordable homes here in Maui.
And, today, my wife and I share the dream of homeownership in Waikapu Gardens. I am also on
the appointed board for Waikapu Gardens as well as an active member of the Waikapu
Community Association. Today I'm here to testify as a homeowner and as an individual, and I
support this project for a number of reasons. Back in the days when the workforce housing
policy was being discussed, there were many people who had to leave the island only because
they could no longer afford a home here. One of the most moving testimonies that I remember
was a lady that came here to testify. She wasn't a public speaker, she didn't like testifying in
front of people; but that week, her and her family were moving to the Mainland because they
could no longer afford a place here. The Spencers, if you come to Waikapu Gardens, it's a very
nice neighborhood, there's a park there. Every day I go home, me and my wife take our dogs for
a walk and we meet our neighbors in the park area. And it's a safe neighborhood, and we'd like
to keep it that way. But more so, we'd like to see other people have that opportunity of
homeownership, too. I'd like to thank the Spencers for what they have done in truly blessing
Maui families with homes. Our home, our subdivision, Waikapu Gardens, currently has
411 homes; and this is another 48-home project that they're looking at. I ask that as things go
that Waiale Road be considered as well. More traffic will be coming on to Waiale Road; and,
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right now, there are no plans for traffic mitigation coming out of our subdivision. The Spencers
have worked with the Waikapu community in addressing the need to take the traffic and the
outlet out from Waiko Road and putting it on Waiale Road and also protecting, as much as
possible, the cemetery that currently is there. Once again, I wanna thank all of you for the hard
work you do and for considering this. Again, I ask your support. And, at this time, I'll answer
any questions that you have.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, aloha, nice to see you -MR. ADOLPHO: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Mr. Adolpho. You mentioned that you're part of Waikapu
Community Association, also, where you are a resident -MR. ADOLPHO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Waikapu Gardens, but you're testifying as a homeowner and
individual not so much on behalf of those associations?
MR. ADOLPHO: That's correct. I'm here as an individual homeowner. I can't speak for the whole
association or for the current board of Waikapu Gardens; but I felt, as a homeowner, I'd probably
have more impact being somebody that was renting to somebody that now has a home and would
like to see more people be able to afford a home here on Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And a follow-up, Chair, if I may?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And is that due to the fact that it's not supported by both
associations or...
MR. ADOLPHO: No. And, again, I can't speak for everybody in the association. The general feel that
I get is that people are in support of affordable housing wherever it is. And that's another thing,
too, we need more affordable housing in different districts of the island. And I'm originally from
the island of Molokai. Please don't forget Molokai and Lanai, because they're part of our
County as well. But the general feel is that people want affordable housing whether that be in
Waikapu Gardens, out in the community as well. There is a need for more affordable housing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Adolpho. And sorry, Chair, lastly, you mentioned
that the subdivision will be impacting Waiale, so to look towards improvements there. But the
business center on the corner, I believe the ingress and egress will be upon Waiko. So,
personally, do you see that as favorable?
-
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MR. ADOLPHO: Once Waiale gets extended, the plans are for it to go across over Waiko Road and
out. Waiko Road's gonna be impacted as well. We've already talked to developers in the area,
people with different projects on the book. There's gonna be churches, schools, industrial areas
coming up, businesses as well and housing in the thousands. Waiale Road is gonna become a
main thoroughfare into and out of Wailuku. And right now, in our subdivision, Waikapu
Gardens, there is no traffic mitigations. There's no stop lights or anything being planned. And
as we move forward, I'd like for that to be a consideration, because when it becomes a four-lane
highway, it's gonna be very dangerous. And I don't wanna see ourselves in a position like our
neighbors down the road at Kehalani, right across the prison, where they're trying to cut into
traffic at busy hours especially during the morning when everybody's trying to get to work. Four
hundred eleven homes is 411 families getting to work, getting to school; and there needs to be
some consideration for that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Adolpho, for your time. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the testifier? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Adolpho, for being here. To ask
you a couple specific questions, the Waikapu Community Association, as best I was told, had
two concerns. The first concern was that the subdivision egressing out to Waiko Road, which
was the original plan -MR. ADOLPHO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and it was changed to Waiale. You guys are comfortable with
the fact that Waiale could handle it more than Waiko Road.
MR. ADOLPHO: Yes, Councilman Victorino, I agree with that because that road coming off of Waiko
Road, there's a blind spot there and it's a very small road. As much as I don't wanna see more
traffic on our side, you know, you gotta give and take, and I feel it's better designed to come on
Waiale.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And you're correct, eventually we intend to expand Waiale all the
way out to Honoapiilani Highway about where the Kamehameha Golf Course exit is now.
MR. ADOLPHO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that will, for our future development, that will happen. You're
absolutely correct. And the other thing that I've heard concerns was that there was a...the
additional homes having accessibility to the park and to some of the other areas close by. And
you understand there are pathways that they're designing so that you can be interconnectable,
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your area could actually walk down to the commercial area as well as them going up to the park
and all that?
MR. ADOLPHO: Yes, Councilman Victorino, I've seen the plans and I've seen the pathway, and I
think that's a good idea. When you have a big, concentrated population like we do, you need
open space, park areas for families to use. And there is a connecting path allowing them to come
up to the park and for us to go down into the subdivision to the commercial areas as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I can say this, in general, the main concerns by the Waikapu
Association and Waikapu Gardens, Waiolani have been pretty much met by the Spencers. I'm
not saying everybody's happy. But, in general, the best you know, most those concerns have
been met?
MR. ADOLPHO: To the best of my knowledge, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair, I appreciate it. Thank you,
Mr. Adolpho.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Any further questions for the testifier? Hearing none,
thank you.
MR. ADOLPHO: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Joseph Scalzo; he'll be followed by Lewis dela Cruz.
MR. SCALZO: Aloha, everybody. I'm Joseph Scalzo. I've been on Maui for, like, 30 years. I've
never really actually testified before the Council. I've watched it on the TV and stuff But I
drove over here this morning from Napili 'cause of how passionate I am about this project. I live
in Napili; I've been here 30 years; I work in the tourist industry; I work at the Ritz, been there for
15 years and before that, at the Westin Maui. But, you know, one of my coworkers bought at
Spencers, the last, you know...and then I keep seeing how happy he is. And basically, you
know, I didn't really think about buying a house, but I've been married a few years now and it's
time to, you know, buckle down. And I really can't afford a house, you know, without this help.
I see my coworker, he did it, he's happy. It's a wonderful project, and I'd just like to make sure
that this goes through whether I get it or not.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you for coming all the way from Napili, you know.
Would you like one day--and this is a question little off the track, Mr. Chair, but I would like to
ask this question--would you like to see something like this in Napili one day?
MR. SCALZO: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MR. SCALZO: But I'm willing to drive all the way just 'cause of the fact that -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You can get...
MR. SCALZO: --you know, my coworker drives every day. I don't wanna really drive 45 minutes, but
this is the only way I'll be able to afford a home. And I don't see that happening in West Maui.
It might come down. I signed up for that Pulelehua; but, you know, that's, who knows, ten
years? I need this, you know. And maybe I won't get it, but at least I gonna try.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair. Thank you, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. SCALZO: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Lewis dela Cruz; he'll be followed by Jeffrey Calibuso.
MR. DELA CRUZ: Good afternoon, Councilmen. My name is Lewis dela Cruz. I am here on my free
time. I'm actually a legal resident of Napili. I was living there since I was five. But I am
currently employed with the County. I'm actually the tax appraiser for Kula. But actually I had
the pleasure of being a tax appraiser for Waikapu Gardens for my first two years, working in '08.
And, with them, I had a pleasure of fixing up the affordable program because a lot of the
program kinda got mixed around. And so we gave the affordable tax benefits to the actual
affordable people that bought. And they were very nice. It took about two years to clean up
everything And I can say, from working with them, they got me excited about Maalaea, but
apparently that's not gonna fall through. And very excited, now, that Waikapu Phase II is
coming up, and I would like you guys to support them. Because even though I technically live in
Napili, of course like the previous testifier said, it's 45-minute drive. The drive was very nice for
the first year, but when gas shot up to $5.00, I couldn't afford the couple hundred dollars a week
in gas, so I'm subletting in Wailuku for the previous three years. And I would like to actually
have my own home. And thank you very much again.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
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MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Jeffrey Calibuso; he'll be followed by Rachel Academia.
MR. CALIBUSO: Good morning. My name is Jeffrey Calibuso. Born and raised on Maui with my
wife Krystal Calibuso. I went to Saint Anthony High School. Currently, I live in Wailuku. I
have four children. And I'm showing support for this development as couple years I tried to buy
a house, but due to the way the housing market is, at the end of the day after you pay for
schooling, pay for your bills, it's impossible to pay your mortgage. So opportunity like this to
own a affordable house, it's perfect. So...
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Rachel Academia; she's the last person who has signed up to
testify.
MS. ACADEMIA: Good morning. I'm Rachel Academia. I'm here as an individual representing...or
supporting the Waikapu Gardens project. I'm here speaking on behalf of myself and my
husband and our two small children. Me and my husband, both, that we work full time. We're
doing our best to be a good, wholesome family on the island of Maui. Just trying to raise a
family the best we can, but everything...I mean I came from the Mainland and everything on the
Mainland seems just to be cheaper, I guess. But this is where we wanna raise our family. And
just to know that we could be part of a project like this where we can have a place to call home
and really raise our children in a stable place that's safe, it's just something that we wanna
support and be behind. So thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Molokai, do
you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Hana Office, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. LONO: There's no one waiting to testify in Hana, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Is there anyone that wishes to give public testimony at this time in the
gallery? Seeing none step forward, if there's no objection, I will close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.
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. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONE . .

CHAIR CARROLL: Members, the Committee is in receipt of the following. Correspondence dated
August 26, 2013, from the Director of Housing and Human Concerns, transmitting the following:
an application for the development of the proposed Waikapu Gardens, Phase II project on
approximately 10.501 acres in Waikapu, Maui, Hawaii, pursuant to Section 201H-38, Hawaii
Revised Statutes. The proposed project consists of 48 affordable single-housing [sic] units to be
sold as house-and-lot packages, with 100 percent of the project offered at affordable prices to
income-qualified households, and a neighborhood commercial center. A proposed resolution to
approve, approve with modifications, or disapprove the proposed project as noted in the meeting
agenda. Correspondence dated August 28, 2013, from Planning Director, transmitting a copy of
correspondence dated August 13, 2013, to Council Chair Baisa, concerning a request for
exemption from the Maui Island Plan Projected [sic] Area designation of Preservation for the
property. Members, by correspondence dated August 30, 2013, the Department of Corporation
Counsel transmitted a revised proposed resolutions incorporating nonsubstantive corrections. I
ask the Members to refer to resolutions attached to the correspondence for today's meeting.
First, I'd like to ask for comments from the Director of Housing and Human Concerns,
Ms. Jo-Ann Ridao. Ms. Ridao?
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair I'm going to just touch upon a few things that was not mentioned by
the Chair. Of course we all know that this is a 48-house-and-lot project that is being proposed by
the JES Corporation in Waikapu, Maui. I want to add, for the Committee's information, there is
also a commercial center on this property that is being proposed at the corner of Waiale and
Waiko Road. The Department was very, very excited about this project because it is 100 percent
affordable based on the residential workforce housing policy. In addition, 58 of the...I'm sorry,
28 of the lots will be sold to residents who are earning 120 percent and less of the Maui County
median income. Fourteen of those units will be in the 80 to 100 percent income category. The
project also is requesting a number of exemptions and one modification that the Committee will
be asked to consider this morning And that is pretty much my presentation. I know that we
have the consultant, Vince Bagoyo, here who will do a more detailed presentation for the
Committee. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. This Committee will stand in recess for two minutes to prepare for a
presentation by Vince Bagoyo, Bagoyo Development Consulting Corporation [sic]. We stand in
recess. . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

11:39 a.m.

RECONVENE: 11:42 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee is now back in session, and we'll turn the
time over to Mr. Bagoyo. Mr. Bagoyo?
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MR. BAGOYO: . . . (PowerPoint presentation). .. Good morning, Mr. Chair and Members of the Land
Use Committee. Thank you so much. My name is Vince Bagoyo, and I'm the consultant for this
project. I just wanna go over briefly the Project Summary of the proposed affordable housing
project. The applicant and the owner is JES Corporation. The owner is here today,
Mr. Jesse Spencer, who has developed the first phase of the Waikapu Gardens subdivisions,
consist of 411 house-and-lot package. The location is in East Waiko Road in Waikapu. The
total acreage, about 10.501 acres for the entire project. As noted earlier by Jo-Ann Ridao, this
project is very unique, it's 100 percent affordable housing project, pursuant 201H of the Hawaii
Revised Statutes. Fourteen homes will be priced to families earning 80 percent to 100 percent of
the median income. And another 14 units for those who are earning 101 to 120 of Maui's
median income. And the remaining 20 homes will be priced.. .those earning 121 to 140 percent
of the median income. There's no other units above 140 median income. Again, this is a total of
48 affordable housing house-and-lot package, and it will be sold in fee and also consist of a
neighborhood commercial stores...or center. The proposed lot sizes, ranging from 5,000 to
approximately 9,000 square feet. The current existing land use designation for the current
property is State Land Use District Agriculture, Community Plan Agriculture, County Zoning Ag
and on the Maui Island Plan, it's under Urban Growth Boundary under protected and
Preservation designation. I'm sorry. The approval required is by the Maui County Council,
pursuant to 201H of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, Affordable Housing Subdivision. Again, this
is the Location Map. It's located in Waikapu. What's unique about this project is actually it's
connected to existing residential development within the Waikapu region. This is the aerial
photo of the project site. Just for your orientation, this is Waiale Road and this is Waiko Road.
The existing subdivision is right here. There's actually an existing park within the Waikapu
Gardens Phase I subdivision. It's approximately 10.3 acres of a linear park. The cemetery is
located around this area right here. Again, this is the Vicinity Map. Again, it's pretty connected
to the existing residential within the Waikapu Gardens and on the lower part of Waikapu Village.
It's 48 lots being proposed. This is the preliminary site plan for the project. We had several
meetings with the Waikapu Association, and one of the things that they've asked us to do is to
make sure that we have a buffer zone. This is the cemetery, the buffer zone between the
cemetery and the proposed subdivision right here. And we are providing about 15-foot buffer
with a fence as suggested by Councilman Mike Victorino. We also proposing a neighborhood
commercial. And the proposed residential access of the subdivision will be through Waiale
Drive [sic] right here. During our meeting with the Waikapu Association, they really did not
want the developer to...or the subdivision to have access off of Waiko Road. There is a
proposed emergency fire lane, as suggested by the Fire Department, right here; and it will be
chained. The proposed driveway for the commercial will probably around this area. It hasn't
been fully planned yet, and so we're looking at the farthest corner of the proposed commercial
neighborhood store. And we're also proposing a driveway off this area, off of Waiko Road.
These are the view photos of the project site. The top photo is facing northwest from the corner
of Waiko Road and Waiale Roads. Again, this is facing north from the south adjoining property.
This is just kinda give you some of the view photos of the project site. I have included this map.
Actually, I got this from the County of Maui. This is where the proposed...very close proximity
to the project. I guess this is your proposed Waikapu baseyard that you have recently purchased
from Tropical Plantation. And there's also a proposed--as I understand it--a Central Maui
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regional park that's currently owned by A&B, which is close proximity to the project site. And
the State-proposed, regional park is located about less than about a little over a half a mile. I
believe they're developing approximately 65 acres of regional park by the State of Hawaii. We
have requested several exemptions, which you have it in a packet. And I will be more than
happy to respond to any questions that you may have later on after the presentations regarding
the proposed exemptions. Just a final note, after further discussion, these proposed exemptions
with the Housing staff and the Corporation Counsel, we have made some modifications to the
proposed exemptions, and I would like to distribute those proposed exemptions' modifications, if
I may, Mr. Chairman? And that's it on my presentation.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We will now stand in recess for two minutes while we raise the
screen. We stand in recess. . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

11:51 a.m.

RECONVENE: 11:54 a.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . Land Use Committee of September 4, 2013 is now back in session.
Ms. Nakata is handing out the exemptions to everyone over here that you can look at during the
lunch hour. I do not want to continue with only five minutes going and just have to stop. So we
are going to break for lunch and reconvene at 1:30, our regular time. And that gives you time to
look at this during the lunch hour.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: No objections, Chair
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, thank you for your attendance for the site inspection this morning and
this morning meeting, and this Land Use Committee meeting of September 4, 2013 will stand in
recess until 1:30 p.m. Recess. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

11:55 a.m.

RECONVENE: 1:37 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of September 4, 2013 is now
reconvened. Members, the Chair transmitted three requests to the Department of Corporation
Counsel seeking legal advice on a variety of issues. One request is dated August 28 th and two
requests are dated September 3 m . I'd like to ask Deputy Corporation Counsel and Members to
turn to those requests and allow the Deputy opportunity to respond to the extent he is able given
the time constraints that we have. Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair The first question was regarding the Subsection 12.08.050D, Maui
County Code regarding an exemption from that. And it seems to be, I guess, redundant because
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2.96.020 exempts these 100 percent affordable projects from the same fees. I don't see any harm
in just leaving it in there. It'll make it clear when you read the exemption list that these fees are
exempt rather than having to follow up and see if 2.96 is applicable later on and actually finding
the Section of 2.96. Moving on to the second question regarding State of Hawaii Department of
Education school impact fees, we believe the Council waiving these fees is a legally defensible
position. I would like to point out that all the powers in 201H are granted to a state entity and
those powers are then given to the County through HRS 46-15.1. And there is a sentence there
that says, you have those powers that may be reasonably construed to be exercisable for a county
of...by a county for the purpose of developing, constructing and providing low and moderate
income housing. I'll leave that to the body to decide whether or not these can be reasonably
construed to be exercisable by a county. I would also like to point out, if you read
Section 302A-1603 regarding those DOE impact fees, there's a section Applicability and
Exemptions, and they do give an exemption list within that. And I just wanted to point out that
201H projects or 100 percent affordable projects are not included in the specified exemption list
for school impact fees. But, again, it's the body's decision. We feel that it's a legally defensible
position if you do decide to waive those fees. Similarly, for the State General Excise Tax, we
discussed it, same type of analysis. It's a little different in the sense that the 237-29 and 201H-36
talk about the developer providing whatever necessary documents to the corporation, which in
our case would be the Department of Housing and Human Concerns for, I guess, passing it on to
the State Tax Office. So, I believe, the intent of the developer was just to notify the Council that
it will be seeking these types of exemptions in its exemption list. So, again, I don't really see a
problem with that section. Moving on. Regarding the commercial center, it is allowed in 201H
projects; 201H-44 specifically allows for a commercial-type centers. Also, I believe the
developer has agreed to a modification. And they've submitted a modification to the exemption
list that would limit develop-ability for that section to those allowed permitted uses in 19.16,
Maui County Code, which is the Neighborhood B-1 Business District or something to that effect.
And, finally, regarding the Council's authority for State Land Use Boundary Amendments, our
office has an opinion from 2005 which essentially says, the Council does have the authority.
And that was in relation to 201G. We will say that it carries on and continues to 201H, so the
Council would have the authority for those parcels less than 15 acres regarding State Land Use
Boundary Amendments. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification you need from Corporation Counsel before we see
the department heads? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair; and thank you, Mr. Ueoka, for your comments.
On the last thing, just to clarify, we can...in this...the question was, may Council legally change
the State Land Use District Classification from Agricultural to Urban by adopting the proposed
resolution? So if we adopt this resolution, that in effect changes the State Land Use District
Classification to Urban or do we have to say, we are going to do that?
MR. UEOKA: Not 100 percent sure if the developer's requesting a change in the State Land Use
classification. I believe they're asking for an exemption from the restrictions contained in that
classification. So I guess, at that point, it's a moot point.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, but if we decide we want to say, make it Urban...
MR. UEOKA: Oh, if you guys were to do that, I believe, typically, it's done by an ordinance. And I
believe under 201H, you could waive a lot of the requirements of that. But I think we'd still
need an ordinance of some sort. But I would probably...we'd work with the Planning
Department on figuring that out at the time...as the time gets closer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the reason I ask.. .if I may, Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The reason I ask this is that if further down the line that once they've
got the subdivision in there if it were to be approved, especially on the commercial side, and now
they're individual lots owned by individual people and they wanted to do an addition of a room
or whatever and now all of a sudden they're on, you know, the zoning and the district boundary
amendment don't match...the district boundary classification doesn't match and things get
wonky after the fact, after everything's done. How do we rectify that?
MR. UEOKA: My understanding there would be this document in the, you know, that's kinda...I'm not
sure if we're gonna.. .I'm sure something will be recorded on all these parcels showing that there
are 201H exemptions on the property. And I'd assume that the Department of Public Works or
whoever would be the permitting authority would recognize that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd like a little more reassurance that...I just can imagine now in, you
know, five years or whatever there's a potential of 48 different people having difficulties trying
to do something on their property. So maybe if Public Works or Planning can answer how they
process something like that that would be nice.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, when we get to those departments, then you can re-ask your question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Corporation Counsel before we bring the
department heads forward?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman? One question, please?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, excuse me. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. So would the Committee be correct in
understanding that the exemptions that being requested for the housing is also exemptions for the
commercial component?
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MR. UEOKA: Yes. They would be...it'd be a commercial component on Ag property which is
exempted but subject to...in the exemption list, it's exempted from the Ag requirements for that
component, but it would be subject to 19.16 or whatever that Neighborhood B-1 Business
District code is. Yes, 19.16, Maui County Code.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So what is the bottom line to this Committee?
MR. UEOKA: That commercial center would be subject to the restrictions of 19.16, Maui County
Code.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Under Urban classified lands?
MR. UEOKA: Ag. I think it's State Land Use Ag and County-zoned Ag.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The project site?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah. But B-1 was meant for Urban classified land not Ag. Okay,
Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we have a number of representatives in the Administration with us. To
ask questions to the departments, I'm starting with representative Department of Water Supply.
For your information, Members, correspondence with government agencies and County
departments are included at the very back of the application. Please identify yourself at the
microphone.
MR. TAYLOR: Good afternoon, Mr. Chair I'm Dave Taylor the Director of the Department of Water
Supply.
CHAIR CARROLL: Floor is open. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Members and Mr. Taylor, in the response from
CWRM, the pages aren't numbered here, but dated February 14, 2013, on the second page of the
response under, "other". It says...the last sentence says, the source of servicing this system are
currently at full capacity regulated within water management areas. New water uses will require
the development of new sources not within existing water management areas. That seems to me
like it says that you can't use our existing water. Can you clarify that for me, please?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Member Couch. I have not seen this letter, I heard about it this morning
and I heard about that language this morning. I was a little confused and I called the author of
that letter at the State Water Commission and had a discussion with him. I think the language
wasn't clear. I wanna be careful about putting words in someone else's mouth. But what he told
me is, he was just trying to put everyone on notice that we only have limited water in the Iao
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aquifer and it won't last forever. It was not his intention, he told me, to say that that water is out
and it can't support any more use. From a numerical standpoint, I have some numbers about
this, the County currently...the State Water Commission, in case any one doesn't know, they
don't control the County's infrastructure. Their role is to protect the aquifers and the surface
water systems...or the surface water flows. They're basically concerned about the volume
coming out of nature not how it's used. So the Iao aquifer, which is designated under their
management where they have a total sustainable yield that they've established at 20 million
gallons a day, the County of Maui Department of Water Supply currently has an allocation of
18.45 million gallons a day of that water; that's measured on a 12-month moving average. The
previous 12 months from August 2013 back a year, our 12-month moving average was
16.213 million gallons a day out of our allocation, allowable allocation, of 18.45 million gallons
a day. So those are the numbers. So anyone who's going to say it's...I don't remember the
words quoted, at its limit or something like that...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It says, the sources serving this system are currently at full capacity.
MR. TAYLOR: Okay. I don't think that is an accurate assessment of the ratio of 16.213 versus 18.45.
I would say it is nearing its full capacity. It gets closer, but it's not at its full capacity. In
addition, many water utilities and municipalities that are across the country are dealing with
growth by increased conservation measures. For example, even if you were at full capacity and
for every 1 percent of growth you took measures to establish 1 percent conservation of existing
users, you will stay at full capacity, you won't go beyond full capacity. So we've discussed this
many times in Water Resources Committee. There are a number of options, and to say that we
are out of water even in the Tao aquifer in just from these numbers, is I think not precise. I think
we need to be careful about the numbers. Again, our 12-month moving average is 16.213. Even
this past August, which was pretty dry, the monthly use was only 17.315 million gallons a day.
And, again, the management area's done on a 12-month moving average. So, again, not to put
words in the mouth of the staffer at the State Water Commission who wrote that letter, but what
he told me this morning was his intention was to put everyone...basically inform everyone that it
is a management area, it's nearing limits and it's just something for everyone to keep an eye on.
It was not meant to be some sort of dire warning. And I asked him, and he agreed, to be more
careful about his language when responding to these kind of things so that we can be a little more
precise. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have more questions with the Department, but not on that subject.
That answers my questions, but if other people want to ask you...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Taylor, for your explanation. A
couple other questions. We have 48 units, right, in this particular subdivision. And we
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average...you guys use what per day, per unit, per day, per household, per day? I mean and I get
that changes, but what is the Department's criteria?
MR. TAYLOR: I don't know what the latest measurements are. It's usually somewhere between 500
and 600 gallons per day; that can depend on, you know, type of usage and lawn size and all these
other kind of things. So we have to be careful about using a number for everything
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, I understand, but there is a...
MR. TAYLOR: It's in that neighborhood.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, in the neighborhood. So if we'd use 600, I'll go with the
high side as 28,000 gallons a day times 30. Just so that people understand that's 86,000 gallons,
you know...no, excuse me 864,000 gallons a month if we using the math, what you just said,
five or six hundred, yeah? I mean I'm doing the math here...
MR. TAYLOR: I won't question your math. I'll assume it's correct. I can't do it in my head.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I mean it's on record and I don't care, because I do it on
the calculator. So whether I'm smart or not, I just get the right answer on the calculator. So, you
know, this would be using about, not quite, little under a million gallons if everybody use the
same amount of water each and every day; obviously, that rises and falls with different people.
Recently, we had a meeting and you said, I quote, that approximately each month we've been
saving, through just the conservation rate increases and conservation, approximately 3 million
gallons a month in our system because people are, you know, cutting back, saving money.
Which also leads us to a shortfall in our revenues, but that's another conversation for another
point. But you're saying, right now, that basically we have nearly one-point-something,
six million gallons available between our sustainable yield and the yield that we're actually using
per month, more or less, for the moving average, is that correct?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm not sure that what you said is precisely mathematically accurate. Let me try
another explanation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. 'Cause I want the public to feel confident in what we do.
MR. TAYLOR: I talked about 12-month moving averages.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. TAYLOR: The 12-month moving average, any time I talk about months, we're always looking at
the daily rate. So it's the daily rate we're expressing over a 12-month moving average. What
it's best to focus on is these daily usage rates. Forty-eight homes at 600 gallons a day per home,
come out, as you accurately said, 28,800 gallons per day. Our current allocation on an average
day is still 18.45 million gallons.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Per day.
MR. TAYLOR: So 28,800 is probably not even within the measuring accuracy of the flow meters. I
mean to put this project into perspective, build this or don't build this, no one's going to notice
the difference even in the.. .in even in the flow meters. It's just too small. So you're really
comparing the 16 or 17 million gallons a day we're using out of Tao aquifer, depending on
whether you wanna look at it at the high peak or 12-month moving average, to 28,000 additional,
it is not...it's a very, very, very small number in relation to the amount we're using and the
amount of float that's available.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So we can be confident that as far as water is concerned,
this is not gonna put much of a dent into what we using per day in our whole system
here...Central system I should say, just for clarification?
MR. TAYLOR: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other question I have here is under K, exemptions from
Chapter 14.07, Maui County Code, Water System Development Fees Schedule. It says, 1. An
exemption for Chapter 14.07.030, Maui County Code, water system development fees shall be
granted to exempt this project from Department of Water Supply development fee schedule. Just
so the public understands, what does that specifically mean to this project?
MR. TAYLOR: The fees mentioned are what are commonly referred to as the new meter fees. The fee
that for a five-eighths-inch meter up until this past June 30 th was $6,030, which this Council
agreed with our recommendation and raised those to $12,060 for a five-eighths-inch meter.
Those are, as we talked about yesterday in the Budget and Finance Committee meeting, those are
the restricted funds that we had a long discussion on yesterday. So 48 units at $12,060 each,
comes out to just under $579,000. So that is revenue and these are not fines, these is monies that
is used to pay for off-site improvements necessary to support these projects. So if this exemption
were granted, we essentially would be short $579,000, which would have to be made up for
somewhere. We have some issues with this. The first is a legal question about whether or not
this would require you to change the Budget Ordinance. Because there's nothing in the Budget
Ordinance that allows meters to go out without money coming in, so that's a legal question. The
other question, is also for this body, is a financial question, how do you want to make up the
$579,000? Does it just get written off, do we raise rates? That's about a 1 percent rate increase
to make up that money for one year. You bring in about 50 million a year, so that's about
1 percent. And transfer it from the end restricted funds. Some philosophical policy questions for
you. If you were to waive this, essentially the Department of Water Supply as an enterprise
fund, we'd be having to raise other people's meter fees or water rates. So you'd be putting this
subsidy solely on the County water users not on anyone else, and so that's a policy decision if
you wanna make that. My recommendation would be that if you want to help them with this,
then you tap into the County Affordable Housing Fund and pay this money. That keeps the
Department of Water Supply finances, as per the Council's previous wishes as an enterprise
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fund, in balance, the audit's clean, it's very clear where all the money's coming from and going
to. And I think and that would also spread the money to everyone because that money comes
from property taxes, and I think that would be more in line with previous Council actions relative
to these fees.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, Chair, I wanted clarification on that matter
'cause that's something that's going to have to be discussed as one of our... 'cause one of the
main points here is that 12,000, because it will be passed on to the buyer. And that's a chunk of
change when you trying to make everything affordable along with other stuff. So I wanted that
cleared up and what we, you know, what are some of the suggestions the Department would give
us. And at a later point, I will be trying to make a proposal to change that. But thank you,
Mr. Chair, for the opportunity. I'll let others ask questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any more questions for the Water Department? Mr. White followed by
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This development also includes a commercial
lot which, I believe, is about 60,000 square feet. What would the size meter be that would
normally be issued for that size commercial lot and what would that cost be?
MR. TAYLOR: I can't answer that. Even if I had blueprints of what was going to be proposed to be
built there, I don't deal with that enough on a day-to-day basis to be able to do that in my head
about how much water they would use. And I don't, frankly, I only remember exactly how much
five-eighths-inch meters cost and I don't remember the three-quarter and the one-inch and all
those other things. So...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Well that's why I was asking you because I don't remember either.
MR. TAYLOR: It's in the Budget Ordinance. I would have to look it up, and we'd have to do some
calculations, but it's all proportional to the water usage for the five-eighths-inch meter. If you're
using twice that much water, essentially, the meter you need costs twice as much. So it's all
based on this equity of usage. So I can't, again, I can't really do it. I can't tell you without
knowing what they're building, but it's probably going to be more than a five-eighths-inch
meter. And how much more? I don't know, and I think it would be not until we saw probably
building permits, I would guess, of what they were proposing to build at that location that those
details were worked out.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Mr. Taylor, on the responses, I think from your
Department--I'll just check...yes--dated February 18 th , on the back, you talk about...you have a
diagram of a wellhead protection area, a ten-year wellhead protection zone that runs through
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about the top third of the property as you see up there right where the notch is by the graveyard
and all the way to exit to Waiale Drive. What does that mean since they are inside the protection
zone--and we know we were there and it's kinda sloping down towards Waiale Drive--is that a
special significance that you.. .1 assume it is because you've put it in your response.
MR. TAYLOR: The Wellhead Protection Program came from a EPA Department of Health grant where
our staff worked with some people at DOH and I think probably University of Hawaii--I'm not
exactly sure where the scientists came from--to basically look at where our wells were and trace
back which land areas were X number of years upstream of those. Meaning, if I dumped
something bad on the ground here, how long would it take to get into the well? And because
time allows microorganisms to break down a lot of these things, as you have less and less time to
the wells, it becomes more critical to make sure the things don't contaminate the wells; that's the
Wellhead Protection Program. So the science has been done to come up with, essentially, time
contours of how far away each piece of land is from the wells. We have grants, at this point, to
help people in those zones do things like, for example, get rid of cesspools. If there's a cesspool
within that zone, we have some grants through Department of Health to help them get rid of
those trying to protect our wells. There is a draft ordinance that the Council has not seen yet. It
is in front of the Board of Water of Supply at this point--it's been for the last couple months-getting their comments before it comes here that would establish, by ordinance--if it was adopted
by this body--officially these wellhead protection areas and mostly have best management
practices and sort of things that had to be done to further protect the County wells. Right now, as
we speak, being in that area doesn't commit you to anything. It allows you to qualify for certain
grants and things that we're giving. If this wellhead protection ordinance is adopted by the
Council, there could be restrictions on things. It would be very unlikely that such restrictions
would do anything to residential households that are connected to the County sewer system.
There's really nothing going on there that would impact the water supply. Industrial areas would
become more likely. So mostly it's things that you can imagine whether it's animal farming,
kind of industrial chemicals, cesspools. These kind of things where things can soak into the
ground and get to the County wells. The programs about trying to protect those for the long
term. So the ordinance, if adopted in the future, would...any of those areas would have to
comply with that. But, right now, there is obviously no ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: A follow-up if I may, Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What about, you know, it looks like there's one, two.. .probably about
ten or eleven homes possibly in that area and then a road. What about runoff from that, what
about fertilizer from the lawns or, you know, small home hazards and, you know, somebody fills
their lawnmower with gas and it overflows or they tip over the gas can kinda thing 9 Does that...
MR. TAYLOR: Those are not the things of -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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MR. TAYLOR: --primary concern. For example, all of old Wailuku Heights is currently in the
wellhead protection area. The single concern people were worried about are the cesspools there
not the normal comings and goings of, you know, spilling some oil while you're filling up your
lawnmower or things like that. Those are a little too small.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the Water Department? Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted a follow-up on I believe it might have been
Councilmember Victorino's questions about the exemption to the water system development fee.
Mr. Taylor, you mentioned in your comments about the possibility of being able to use the
Affordable Housing Fund to somehow make up for the shortage of that 570,000 that would be, I
guess, a shortfall and be dispersed or reimbursed or be paid by the other users in the system. My
question would be, can I ask the Housing Director in terms of the possibility of that happening of
being able to use Affordable Housing Fund to somehow pay for that fee?
CHAIR CARROLL: Since we're right over here, I'll allow that. But I'd like to keep it more on the
Water Department. But, Ms. Ridao, could you answer that?
MS. RIDAO: The way I would answer that is, Member Guzman, is that there are funds in the
Affordable Housing Fund. The applicant would have to come to us and request those monies
and you, as this body, the Council would have to approve use of that money.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I'll follow up later on. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the Water Department? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, no, I was...a follow-up on that, so I'll wait until we talk to her.
Her comment there.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. As there are no further questions for Water, I'm going to release
Mr. Taylor and go to the next department. Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Environmental Management? Okay. I do not see anybody from Environmental
Management here right now. Fire and Public Safety? Please identify yourself at the
microphone.
MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, Chair. Lieutenant Scott English from the Fire Prevention Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: Questions for Fire and Public Safety, Fire Department? I'll give you a moment.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. English, for being here. I don't
think there's much doubt in my mind about, you know, any of the...but is that access road
accommodating enough, you know, entrance from Waiko Road? I guess that's why that whole
thing was put out was so that you guys would have a direct link off of Waiko, which you
probably wouldn't use very much if you're coming from Wailuku or Kahului because you'd
come up Waiko or you'd come across Waiale. So but, anyhow, it's there and you guys, I guess,
asked for it, so that was to futuristic needs that may occur in that area?
MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, Member Victorino. Basically, you know, when a subdivision has like only
one way in -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. ENGLISH: --we try to get an alternative way out in case there's a emergency that we have to
evacuate people and the only way in is blocked off per incident or something. So we normally
ask like a emergency evacuation area so we can evacuate people out or we can use that to get in
if in case the original road is blocked for some kind of accident or kind of...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this is the same premise you did here at Kehalani with that
entrance by Wailuku Elementary, Hawaiian Homes? I mean you guys have it a number of places
I know. So that's the basic premise of these entries is in case that just generally one in and one
out?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct. And most of 'em we have...it's a regular swinging gate. You got 12 or
20-feet wide. Like I said, it's locked in. When we need to.. .if we need to use it, we just cut the
lock open and so the people can evacuate out or we could use it for access.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay, Chair, thank you very much, appreciate it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the Fire Department? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I guess this may...well, actually no. This is
probably for Corp. Counsel regarding to the Fire Code and a couple other codes. So I don't think
it's for the Department. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for the Fire Department? Seeing none, thank
you. Police Department?
MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, Chair
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Scott.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: EM is here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: EM is here.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Environmental Management's here.
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh. We'll let...the police are coming down, so then we'll do Environmental
Management. Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. WALLWORK: Hi, my name is Officer Wallwork from the Police Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: Questions for the Police Department?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry, since you came and, you know, I guess the fundamental
question I would have for you is, as a area, Waikapu Gardens and that area, do you feel the
traffic mitigation by only coming out on Waiale at this time--and I know in the future, as we
expand, there's gonna be changes--but right now coming on to Waiale, do you feel it's fairly safe
as far as ingressing and egressing into the subdivision itself?
MR. WALLWORK: At this point, we feel it's alright. Only changes would have to be made is when
they actually maked [sic] it a four-lane roadway. I mean, till the extension, it's fine as it is right
now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And, again, that was, you know, again, that's
the concern of all the citizens is...I should say, "the residents", is when that expansion comes.
The extension comes out and traffic would be a lot more heavy. And, right now, it's pretty much
residential and a few people cutting across to catch Waiko to go either ends, Honoapiilani or
Kuihelani. So you don't have a lot of problem with speeding or anything like that as best you
can tell at this time?
MR. WALLWORK: Not at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for the Police Department? If not, thank you for coming
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MR. WALLWORK: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Environmental Management? Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mike Miyamoto the Deputy Director for Department of
Environmental Management.
CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is open.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman then Mr. Victorino.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I've a question in regards to the exemption from Title 18.
This is letter E in regards to sewage disposal, relating to sewer lateral connections for residents
shall be granted to allow for the use of double laterals instead of single laterals to a single-family
home. Can you explain what the difference between a double lateral and a single lateral and
what is the ramification of using a double lateral as opposed to a single lateral? And then I'm
gonna ask a follow-up question after that.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Okay. Generally, it's adjoining properties. Usually, we prefer to have a single
lateral from each property. They don't share a line that connects to our main line. If you have
two properties sharing one line that ties into the main line, you have little Y that comes together,
one from each property, they come into a Y and then one line ties into the County's system. If
you share a line, you know, it's hard to assess who caused the blockage in the County's system,
at that point. And so, you know, short of evidence of one property to the other, we have to eat
the cost of repairing the line or clearing the line. But if you have single lines, at least you can
identify, specifically, which property caused that backup and what was in there that, you know,
so we can assess a cost to them, the homeowner.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: So.. .Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you. So what you're telling me is, it's easier in terms of addressing
accountability, which house could be identified as being the problematic house that caused the
clog -MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: --or the result of it?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Exactly, yes.
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VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: And then would you know what the cost amount of the difference between
constructing a unit using the double lateral versus a single lateral? How much at per unit that
would cost by shifting it from single to double?
MR. MIYAMOTO: The only real difference is the length of pipe within the County's right of way and
the additional connection to the County's main line system. For us...the adjacent development,
they kept it all private. So because it was a private system, we had no objection over them doing
a shared lateral. But if we're gonna take over the system, that's why we want individual laterals.
The cost would be, I'd say, at least 15, 20 feet of trenching, putting in another four-inch pipe and
then another tie-in to the main line. That would be about the additional cost. How much it is,
offhand? I don't really have a good idea, offhand.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Would that be a substantial amount of increase or a very minimal amount
per unit?
MR. MIYAMOTO: I think it would be minimal because this is virgin ground that they're doing. They
don't have to maintain the flow of the existing line, so it would be rather minimal.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: And have there been other projects that have used double laterals as opposed
to single?
MR. MIYAMOTO: I think the existing development has that, the shared laterals.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: And in those existing developments, have you had problems occur
frequently in terms of the accountability of identifying the certain units that are causing the
problems?
MR. MIYAMOTO: In the older systems, we did have a problem because the County was responsible
for the County's right of way, the pipe as it entered the County's right of way. In the adjacent
development, the existing homes that he had built previously, that system remains private so we
don't know the maintenance history on those systems.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And that was my line of questioning. But I have one
more to add to that. Right now, they had explained to us when we were up there today, this
morning's site inspection, that this was going to be connected to the pump that existed right
adjacent to the property which is on the I guess south end of the existing Waiko Road
side...Waiale side nearest Waiko where the existing Waikapu Gardens now is. And so by
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having a single lateral, would that not kinda put a little bit more expense to them because now
that single lateral had to now be connected to that particular pump station?
MR. MIYAMOTO: The only real cost with the additional lateral is, like I had mentioned, the additional
amount. Because regardless whether you put it in two pipes, one pipe, it's all gonna get to that
pump station. So the only added cost is that additional trenching and an additional T or Y to
accept the second lateral from the adjacent property.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So and you mentioned, in the old systems, do you find in more of
the newer systems like Kehalani, in Wailuku Heights subdivisions, that has not happened as
often as the older systems have been and, you know, kinda like what we putting in now to
standards, this doesn't happen very often?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, that's why we really wanted to have it in our standards.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and that's why you guys made those changes?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. And I can see where this has led me to
understand what their exemption was. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Could you give us an estimate of what the savings
would be from the exemption of Title 14, Public Services, which is the wastewater assessment
fees for facility expansion?
MR. MIYAMOTO: For the Wailuku-Kahului area wastewater side, the amount is $1,600 per unit, per
single-family residential unit. So with 48 units, that's about $76,800.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay. Great, that's all I had. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Environmental Management? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, Mr. Miyamoto, that fee is not similar to
the water development fee, right? That isn't a budgeted amount as opposed to the water
development fee, when they sell a meter, they already have that in the ordinance?
MR. MIYAMOTO: First, that pays for, you know, the operations of the existing system. It helps
contribute to the cost of the existing and the modifications to the existing sewer system.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And if we exempted them from that fee, does that put you in a different
budgeted amount? Similar...I don't know if you heard Mr. Taylor's comments on the water
system.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah. For the Sewer Department.. .I mean for our Wastewater Division, you
know, in Title 14.35.080, we have a list of exemptions. And in that exemptions, it does list
affordable housing units to try and assist the development of affordable housing units. And, you
know, this amount, when you consider we have a $30 million budget, may or may not--depends
on what you consider significant--you know, doesn't seem like a whole lot. But, for us, all it
means is that we have to make sure a note of it, account for the increased cost and if any
proposed rate increases for the future, we need to make sure we account for these differences.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But that's just a one-time charge, right? The regular sewer fees that the
fixed fee that you get on your bill, they're not requesting exemption from that?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Right, yes, correct. One-time fee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: One-time fee, okay. But that's it on Wastewater. I got others.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just need to hear it again. Your Department's supporting multiple
laterals to the sewer system, which is not our standard, and you folks are gonna come back to us
down the road to accept this dedication of this system?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is that a good understanding of the Committee?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Typically, if someone proposes a private system, we ask them that exact question,
are you looking to dedicate this system down the road? 'Cause if you are, we're gonna hold fast
with the single lateral for each parcel. But if, for example in the previous development that was
done in previous years, there was no intent to dedicate that system to us. So we said, you know,
then we don't object because the maintenance burden is put on the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Understood. For this project?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Our understanding, because it's gonna be tying into that pump station that's shared
with the adjacent development, it is also gonna be kept private.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So that'll run with the land then, 'cause then I don't have to
worry about a request coming before me down the road to accept this system?
MR. MIYAMOTO: That, I'll have to defer to you.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Because if you guys being honest with us and you gonna tell us this
afternoon that eventually we going be asked to accept, I going tell you, forget the exemption.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah. And as we've done in the past, if it doesn't meet the County's standards, it's
not...we can't, in all good conscience, recommend adoption of the dedication to this Council, to
this body.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I think, Corp. Counsel, you need to protect the County, have
this run with the land if that's what they telling us for these approvals. Thank you, Chairman, I
appreciate that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any more questions for Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, one of my questions then would be to you,
Mr. Miyamoto. Right now, the other system is private at this time?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this does not run with the land at this time?
MR. MIYAMOTO: To be honest, I'm not aware of what happened back then because I wasn't part of
this Department, to be honest.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Chair, I would, you know, like to request that to, somehow,
we can find that out. If we can, you know, in today's session, if somehow we can find if that ran
with the land. Because, you know, already we have 400-and-something homes if I'm
correct...441, I forget the number they gave me. What was the number? I don't know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four eleven.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Four eleven.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Four eleven?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, 411. I know was 400 something, okay. There's a lot of
brighter people in this room than I am, so I forget numbers a lot of times. However, 411, that if
for some reason they came to us and said, Environmental Management wanna take over and they
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were trying to turn it over, we'd be stuck with that at this time. So what's another 48?
Especially if they're all affordable, doesn't bother me so much. If it is, and it runs with the land,
then I would like to see that, a continuing of that. So if somehow we can find that out,
Mr. Chair, I would appreciate it, before our proceedings are done today. 'Cause I'd like to see
up or down on this because they gotta get going on it. So I'd like to find out that answer, 'cause
if I believe correctly, and I'm not an expert, but I believe it doesn't. But I need to see. I need to
find that out for sure. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: I believe it does, too, but we will try to clarify that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair, I appreciate that.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch followed by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Mr. Victorino asked one of the questions I was gonna ask
about whether the existing Waikapu Gardens is private system or not. So they have their own
wastewater treatment plant?
MR. MIYAMOTO: No. They have their own pump station. Generally, all the flow goes down towards
Waiale Road then it's pumped into a sewer line that runs through their subdivision that services
from the Tropical Plantation down towards our Wailuku pump station down by Jack in the Box
on Lower Main. So it gets into the County system...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, it does go.. .so it is part of the County system. But the internal
stuff is private -MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes. The collection system.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and that's for you to...
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And you don't care about that portion then?
MR. MIYAMOTO: It's not our responsibility at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So just for fees and whatnot. So on a monthly fee, individual
owners are still going to have to pay sewer fees then?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, because it is being transmitted in the County's system and then through the
various pump stations and treated in our sewage treatment plant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay. Hybrid.

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 4, 2013

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Following up on this discussion. So, the first phase,
there was never any talk with your Department about getting it dedicated to County?
MR. MIYAMOTO: I think they probably would've preferred to have it dedicated to the County, but I
think the roadway, because it was in a corridor that the roadways were gonna remain private, the
system is primarily in a private right of way, so then we can't take it over. Because then every
time we were to try to do maintenance, we would have to get permission to get into this private
property.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And follow up, Chair 9
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, currently, double laterals are in that phase?
MR. MIYAMOTO: That is my understanding, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And each individual unit pays sewer fees to us, the County?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so the concern you had about the single line versus double, if
there's a blockage today, in that phase, you could not pinpoint who you would need to assess?
MR. MIYAMOTO: If it happened in that phase, they would have to then do the assessment because we
would not be called out to maintain that system.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that all feeds into our force main, as you mentioned,
down by Jack in the Box; and, from there, it goes to our Kahului treatment facility?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And currently we have capacity for this new build out -MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to take?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I just wanna follow up on this discussion
about single and double laterals for wastewater. It was stated that cost would probably be
minimal. What I'm really curious to know is I'm sure we have enough experts in the room that
somebody can tell us what minimal is. You know, we're looking at various fees and exemptions
and whatever. And, you know, that bottom line is here. We're trying to protect the affordability
of all of this. So I, at some point, would like...I don't know who can tell us, but I don't want us
to make a decision without a cost.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just as a follow-up to help with that. Mr. Miyamoto, you were talking
about going from essentially somewhere on the property of a individual lot to the street is the
difference in cost. The Y is somewhere on somebody's property, is that correct?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're talking maybe 15, 20 feet of trench per house?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, pretty much what...you would have another trench through the roadway and
another connection -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Another T connection to the...
MR. MIYAMOTO: --to the main line that's in the street. But, as I said, this is private, so and it's
virgin, there's no flow to be disrupted so it would be easier to do it now at this point in the
construction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not pau.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anybody else have any questions for Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, we still need the answer.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We still need the answer for her question.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: I was going to call down, afterwards -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh.
CHAIR CARROLL: --but -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Why don't we do it?
CHAIR CARROLL: --if we could wait right now until we finish with the departments, then we'll call
them up to answer your question, if that's alright?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're the Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Any more questions for Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair 9
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead. I just asked one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. I mean just looking at EM's comments for this project,
Item E, No. 2, Item E in regards to plans should install...and we're talking about the
single-service laterals and advanced risers for each lot. They're asking for, I guess, using double
laterals instead of the single laterals. So just kinda wanna know what is that advanced risers
mean in relation to the single laterals or double laterals.
MR. MIYAMOTO: Mr. Chair? In general, what we do, is we have...whenever you have a...the
County, technically, is responsible for the sewer lateral within the County's right of way. And
so, generally, what we have...any new lateral come in, they put a little additional cleanout area
right about two feet within the private property. You'll see it's a little four-inch cover, and that
gives us access to the lateral and then so we can run a camera or something to clean out that line
in the County's right of way. So, generally, it's pretty much required for all residential housing
at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And it...sorry, follow up. So it looks like they're not
looking for exemption of that particular unit or...
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. MIYAMOTO: And so, with the two, they would still.. .each property would have its own riser to
help clean out that line.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Guzman?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, thank you, Chair I have another question in regards to H, the letter H
exemption dealing with Chapter 8.04, the Disposal Permits. They're asking for an exemption for
the application and suspension for the requirement of a refuse disposal permit. How much is that
in terms of the cost, I mean, that we're going to be exempting? Is that per unit or is that just the
entire project development permitting fee? I mean can you explain that?
MR. MIYAMOTO: This one really, when I saw it, it really caused a pause for me. Because if you read
Title 8.04.040, Disposal Permits, the first word in there is...it says, no business, federal, or state
agency, religious entity or nonprofit organization, you know, will dispose of trash at our landfill.
So basically what it looks like is, this is for people who are gonna get into the business of trash
disposal. So if you wanna get into the business of disposing trash at our landfill, we want you to
have a permit. The permitting fee in the most recent rates and fees is $5. So for every permit
they pull, it's $5. You only need a permit to be an operator, you don't need a permit to, you
know, once you got your permit, you can come to the landfill, you pay your tipping fee based on
the weight of the trash that you're dumping at the landfill. So it's a $5 fee, basically, to me.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Well, it doesn't seem like this exemption is applicable then, according to
you?
MR. MIYAMOTO: To be honest, not knowing what their plans are, we didn't wanna draw any
conclusions whether they were gonna have someone who's getting into the business or what
have you. It's just, you know, it's a permit fee of $5; that's all we saw it as. And so it's not that
big of a deal.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: I'll follow up with whoever you bring down from the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As best you know, Mr. Miyamoto, they would be under the same
refuse program as Waikapu Gardens I under our system, they would have trash cans and the
regular pickup, twice a week and all that, as best you know?
MR. MIYAMOTO: I would assume so because if the roads are gonna remain private, they're gonna be
under the same, private refuse collection system.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll ask the developer when they come back up. But, you know, I
think this is one of those that I don't know if somebody put it in. I guess maybe if somebody
could explain that to us, either Corp. Counsel or Ms. Ridao, why that was put in. But I can wait
till little bit later. We get you guys some time to go figure it out. Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Regarding that same one, would the commercial lot be
required to file.. .get a refuse disposal permit? 'Cause it says, no business...
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yeah, I'm assuming that, you know, the contractor will have a private hauler doing
it, and they will be permitted with us. And during construction, most of the waste will probably
go to the...whether it be the construction, the C&D Landfill out here in Maalaea, or what can
come to us if there was vegetation that needs to come to us, we certainly can take that at our
EKO composting. But I don't think they're gonna have their own business. I think they're
gonna hire someone to do the trash hauling for them, and they will probably be permitted.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Ms. Baisa's question, is the applicant able to answer that? If there's no
objection, I'm gonna call the applicant forward.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could you please identify yourself at the microphone?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair? While the applicant is up there, would you allow
us to ask the other questions about the refuse? That since he's there, would you allow us to ask
those questions, also?
CHAIR CARROLL: I will.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair
MR. SPENCER: Doug Spencer

on behalf of the JES Corporation.

CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Balsa, could you repeat your question, please?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Spencer, I think you heard the question, and it was in regards to the
difference between a single and a double lateral and what that cost might be.
MR. SPENCER: I'm gonna give you an answer, then I'm gonna give you an explanation to that, if you
don't mind? The cost would be estimated to be, you know, somewhere between 500 to 1,000
dollars per home to do that extra work. However, it's a moot issue. Because, as the Deputy
Director of Environmental Management says, this is a private internal sewer system until it
reaches the County's sewer line. So they don't care which way it is. I can tell you by
experience, the last four years in Waikapu Gardens, we've not had one blockage on double
laterals that we've had to go in and fix at all. So I think a lot of the conversation is somewhat,
you know, moot, maybe not understanding how the sewer system works. And all of the sewer
lines in our new project is gonna go to the pump station, which is private, is gonna be then
pumped up, which is still private, until it reaches that main sewer trunk which runs through our
greenbelt through Waikapu Gardens. Once it gets into there, then it becomes County. And I
would add, just in listening to this, there's a little bit of inequity because part of what you're
paying for as part of your County assessment is maintaining the entire sewer line to your house.
What the residents of Waikapu Gardens are actually paying the same rate everybody else pays,
but they're not getting those lines maintained by the County. But in answer to your question,
that would be the additional cost. And I don't think the Deputy Director would have a problem
how we do it since they're not gonna be maintaining those individual sewer lines.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you for your explanation. That helps a lot, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: A follow-up to that comment. Then why did you ask for the
exemption?
MR. SPENCER: Because when we go in for a permit, we just wanted to make sure, you know, that they
didn't...because of their design standards, would require us to do single laterals. And so we just
wanted to clarify that and not have to have that argument at the time that we go in to get our
permits.
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm gonna allow one question. But we have other department heads. Actually,
could you wait and we'll call him down afterwards? 'Cause we have the other department heads
over here with...or is that...your question was about Environmental...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, the refuse. I mean I guess he can answer, yes or no, you
know, real quickly, you know.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, proceed.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You heard my question about whether it be under the County's
system like the rest of Waikapu Gardens or are you looking to privatize that?
MR. SPENCER: No, we're looking, actually, for these particular roads to be dedicated not necessarily
the sewer lines underneath there, but the roads to be dedicated and to have County trash pickup
in this section.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Environmental Management? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, so now that they have County trash pickups, they still don't need
that...they don't need that disposal permit, is that correct?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Correct. The existing development has private. And if they're gonna dedicate the
roads, then we can certainly sign them up for the County's refuse collection.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And they don't need the permit?
MR. MIYAMOTO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's.. .okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Environmental Management? Seeing none, thank you.
Public Works, Mr. Goode? If you could please identify yourself at the microphone?
MR. GOODE: Good afternoon, Chair. Dave Goode here, Public Works.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Goode, referring to correspondence dated March 12, 2013, from you and
Mr. Bagoyo on April 1, 2013's response. Could you state whether your concerns have been
satisfied and advise the Committee of any remaining concerns you might have about the project
so we could discuss these issues?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, thank you, Chair. Generally, yes. I guess, lingering departmental concerns would
be the improvements along Waiale and Waiko Road. We would prefer, you know, curb gutter
and sidewalk. We're spending a lot of time and effort I think, as the body knows, in relation to
complete streets in trying to provide, you know, as best as we can, facilities to facilitate all types
of movement. And that would include, you know, curb gutter and sidewalks or related
improvements. So from the Department's standpoint, that's not something we could support.
Well, obviously, it'd be the decision of the body and we'll live with that. We're spending, in our
CIPs, the last few years, we've been getting Countywide sidewalk monies, so I could
anticipate.. .if we don't put 'ern in now, we're gonna have to put 'ern in later, right, and so that's
just the way it is with that. In general, as it relates to fees, as I think it was previously noted with
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both Wastewater and Water, we're kind of in the same boat. You know, if we don't collect those
fees now, we're gonna have to collect them somehow somewhere later either at the expense of
our other fee payers like for building permits, for instance, or from the General Fund. So that's,
again, a policy call, up to you. We would support the idea that I think was mentioned earlier of
having the Affordable Housing Fund, which we all contribute to as property owners, to assist
affordable housing might be appropriate venue to come back and refund, if you will, those
missing funds. For us, the building, plumbing, electrical, grading, driveway fees are probably
$2,000 a unit, be my guess, depending on the size of the units, et cetera. So that's a ballpark of
what we're looking at in that regard. And I think what I saw in one of the resos was way it's
being structured is, they would pull those permits. We'd pull the building, plumbing, electrical
permits, grading permits, but not do the fees. But on driveway permits, I think it was mentioned,
that the both the permit and the fee would not be pulled. We would prefer that the permit be
pulled so that we make sure that those driveways are installed properly to our codes. So that
summarizes our comments, Chair.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: The floor is open. Mr. Victorino followed by Mr. Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, Mr. Goode, thank you for that explanation. It
was brought to our attention this morning, while you were there...I don't know if you were there
when I asked the question, is sidewalks going to be along Waiale and Waiko? And they said,
well, their response was, there's nothing there now. And because expansion of the roadway is in
the future, they didn't think it was proper to start doing it now because they had not done the
other Waikapu Gardens Phase I. And, if I'm correct, when I drive that road, there is no
sidewalks all the way. I mean the only sidewalks you can find is from Longs, up by Longs; and
then from Longs, I don't think there's any sidewalk to Waiko Road and there's nothing on
Waiko Road. I'm not sure if on the other side towards where the development.. .you know
where the commercial development? I'm not sure, I don't think so. You know, I drive these
roads all the time and I cannot remember any sidewalks. But that was their response to us that
they would...now, you're asking them to put in, in this Phase II, sidewalks which don't exist in
Phase I or on Waiko Road or anywhere else in this whole development area. So how would you
answer that question that you're gonna get them to do just this section? So like in many other
parts of this County, you get little sidewalk. Like Waiale, I go Waiale Road, if I start from
Hashi's service station and walk or go up that way, I get sidewalk here, no sidewalk, sidewalk
here, no sidewalk. So how do answer that question? 'Cause I have people complaining now that
there's no sidewalks on Waiale, but Waiale was never a main thoroughfare until the last ten
years. So I know things change and, just like you just said, somebody going pay, either Peter or
either Paul. And so we can take it out of the Affordable Housing, but that only takes care of this
area, what about the rest?
MR. GOODE: Well, I guess the general answer to that is, you know, our codes both building and
subdivision require for that area that you're subdividing or building on.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: It doesn't say you have to build on your neighbors' and down the road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, understood.
MR. GOODE: And so we get something. And so then it's up to us and you folks to say, okay, well we
wanna bridge these gaps and fill them in with, say, CIP Funds -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: --or we wait for those properties to be developed. So, you know, I'm constricted by our
codes. Our codes say, it's gotta get done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. GOODE: It's basically urbanized, right. We would expect people to be walking to the store and
walking eventually. So where we see that kinda hit and miss sidewalks is because just those
properties were developed on older roads.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh. Well then the other question is, we are definitely going
to expand Waiale. I mean, when? None of us know exactly, but one day expansions of Waiale
is going to occur.
MR. GOODE: Yes. In fact, I mean for everybody's knowledge here, we have done the draft
Environmental Assessment for Waiale Road which would continue from where it ends now
through Waiko, over the stream, heading towards Maalaea and then coming back up I think
around where the Maui Blocks driveway is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: And we're not yet moving to a final EA because there's some questions from the Federal
Government as it relates to getting Federal funding, et cetera. But that's the general alignment.
When we get everything squared away, then we'd be coming back here for design funds, and
eventually matching funds, you know, for the Federal match to construct that roadway. It'll be a
two-lane roadway. But I think, as I mentioned in the site visit this morning, the size is big
enough to eventually do four lanes. The fact that there's quite a bit of real estate there on most
of Waiale Road till you hit the bridge. You know, there's potential of having I think it was in
that Central Maui bike plan which was discussed here at Council as having a separate bikeway,
facilities there. So there's a lot of opportunities within that right of way, eventually.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. The only challenge I beg to differ with you, when you get
down by the cemetery up to about where Longs is, I dare you to show me where you're gonna
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have to not take somebody's land; because the two sidewalks are there, there's not enough to put
four lanes. So I know these roads better than most people 'cause I drive 'em every day -MR. GOODE: Uh-huh.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I can see that there's a lot of areas we won't have
expandability. But I'm not gonna get...that's not the time and place to discuss it. I just wanna
know if we ask them to put sidewalks in--and I was for it, you know, I'm not against it--and
curbs and gutters like that, you know, that we get them to do that, but there's gonna be a lot of
years between that and getting it all the way down to the other end. And would that affect
expandability of the roadway? And that's the other issue I have is, you put sidewalks now and
then all of a sudden when you expand for bikeways and all that, does that impede, do we have to
tear out those sidewalks? You know, something that concerns me because, you know, how you
build it now, ten years from now you wanna expand, does that, you know, do we dig those
sidewalks up and, you know? So that's my concern. I'm not against it. In fact, I think, you
know, all too often we don't do it and then later on we gotta do it somewhere along the line. We
are the taxpayers that have to pay for it. The good thing is, there'll be 48 taxpayers in that
vicinity that'll be adding to the pool of monies that goes into our tax system, our RTP [sic] so.
You know, I understand your answer and thank you very much. I just not sure how we approach
this one versus we haven't done anything in the past. And I don't know about when it expands
especially, what's gonna happen. So thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, to clarify, I don't see any exemption for curbs, gutters or sidewalks in
this document to begin with unless from the Phase I, if that would exempt them. It says, one
exemption. And so, that, we need to clarify. But, right now, there is no exemption for curbs,
gutters or sidewalks unless we add it in. And we can address that...so we can have this
discussion afterwards, too, if we wish to do that. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair; and thank you, Mr. Goode, for being here. In the
exemptions under Item G.1., the grabing--grabing--grubbing, grading, permits and inspection
fees, they wanna be exempted. Is there, like, a dollar figure that can be connected to that? Is that
hard to do?
MR. GOODE: There can be. I can't do it off the top of my head, 'cause I don't -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --know it well enough.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No ballpark, maybe guesstimation [sic], right now? 'Cause you
sorta knew the 2,000 per unit for the Fire, you know, all those other code, permitting...
MR. GOODE: I tell you, my recollection is that it's not that much for the grading and grubbing fees. I
hate to even pull a number out of my hat.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: Actually, Mark Matsuda back there might know better than I do, but there is a bonding
requirement, generally, and they're not asking for exemptions from that. I think that's very
important that we have the bond, so in case something happens we have ability to come back in
and do something
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: I'd hate to hazard a guess, but I could probably quickly find out, get back to the
Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Chair, if there's a way to do that, I don't.. .maybe in a little
while or I don't know. Just to take a little gander at what the amounts. I'm trying to just tally
everything up in a sense in figuring out what exactly is the dollar amount they're looking With
all these exemptions said and done, what is the bottom line figure in the end? So that's my
reason for line of questioning, Chair. If there's a way.
CHAIR CARROLL: That's a difficult question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: --followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was kinda happy, though, that...
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I was very happy that my colleague asked that question, 'cause I
would like to know that answer, too. I think everyone would like to know how that impacts the
per-unit cost. But on this inspection request on the exemption, would that also include when
they request special, expedited reviews and inspections, also? You know, I mean they wanna
close a wall or a trench sooner than the scheduled inspections, so they gonna ask for a special
callout, does that get exempted, also?
MR. GOODE: I believe it would, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well then I get issues with that, too. The one thing I will support,
Chairman, is the Director's request to at least have something filed regarding driveways, 'cause I
- 45 -

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

September 4, 2013

mean one of the things we did with this County is all this non-permitted driveways which, in
many areas, is less than 30 feet from stop signs which is all illegal by County Code; and, yet, we
see 'em everywhere, okay. Even parking in front of stop signs like a parking stall, we see that
everywhere. So I am very supportive of the Department being able to have appropriate traffic
management requirements, especially for the collector roads. I don't know, I mean I see maybe
one for this whole subdivision whether you wanna call it the collector or the road. But I can
support the Department's concerns on this, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Mr. Couch followed by Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair Mr. Goode, on the...one of the other
exemptions that they're looking for at 18.04.030, Administration, there's a lot of stuff in there
under that one chapter. I was just curious if you're okay with that request for exemption or you
have some concerns?
MR. GOODE: For 18.04.030, Subdivision Code, the Administration, this subsection really deals with
what we call, "the consistency issue". Is the community plan designation and the zoning and the
State designation all in alignment so we can process the subdivision? And, generally, I guess
that wouldn't be the case here 'cause that's Ag and I don't know what the community plan is.
Plus, you got this 201E on top of everything with small lots. So without the 201E, we'd get an
application. If they came in for this subdivision, we'd just reject it. So, yeah, it's a long
subsection as you know, but it basically it's all about making sure that there's these
consistencies. So I think it's a reasonable request -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --as long as this passes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And along that same line, you have 18.16.020, Compliance. And that's
a really short one, but it is really all encompassing. I'm just curious. I'll just read it to the
Members. It says, subdivision shall conform to the General Plan and shall take into
consideration preliminary plans made in anticipation thereof. Subdivision shall conform to the
requirements of State law, Department of Public Works, State Department of Health, State
Department of Transportation and Board of Water Supply requirements and the standards
established by this title. So I mean that's a big net.
MR. GOODE: Yeah, and thank you for bringing this up. But, first of all, what you read was the old
code.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
MR. GOODE: We passed, about a month ago, an amendment to this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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MR. GOODE: It's a very good...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It was online
MR. GOODE: They actually streamlined it a little bit and got rid of all those agencies and just said, any
of the reviewing agencies and State and County law. So there's two parts to this subsection.
One says, hey, it's gotta conform to the General Plan, similar to the one we just discussed. And
then it also says, the subdivision shall conform to the requirements of the reviewing agencies and
State and County law. So I think we ought to keep the second part, right, especially if we wanna
dedicate the roads, is my understanding, the roads would be dedicated. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: When you say, keep the second part, not allow the exemption, is that
what you're saying?
MR. GOODE: Right. We can't exempt the blanket statements and we're not gonna develop it to any
County or State law. That's how I would read it and recommend.. .you tackle that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And, Mr. Chair, we'll discuss that with the applicant. I'm
assuming you're having him kinda go through every one of these.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: After we finish with all the departments, then I'm going to allow the applicant to
come down.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Any more questions for Mr. Goode? Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Guzman, we
left you over there.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Oh, thank you, Chair. Actually, I was just referring to, I believe, the letter B
exemption regarding the driveway permit, pulling the permits. This might just be an error in
drafting the sentence here. 'Cause it says, driveway permit and inspection fees. I'm thinking
that this might be the driveway permit fees and inspection fees. But I guess that needs to be
clarified with the developer. That could be an error in that. 'Cause I don't see why they would
wanna avoid pulling of permits, but that can be clarified. And the other section here, it's letter E,
following up with Councilmember Couch's questioning, I believe that they are specified in this
language on that they're only asking for a Change in Zoning and Community Plan Amendment.
And so everything else after that, the reviewing agency provisions would be applicable, and I
think they're only asking for just the Change in Zoning and Community Plan Amendment. But
that's something that needs to be verified with the...am I correct on that?
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MR. GOODE: I'm gonna defer that to Mr. Ueoka, so -VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --as long as we all agree, then it's fine, yeah.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Alright. I mean we can bring up the developer and ask them to clarify.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, real quickly as a follow-up to Mr. Guzman's, for
Mister...
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed, Mr. Couch.
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. That language in there, whether or not the intent is
there, I would like you to be a little bit more exact with Mr. Guzman's question that can they be
exempt from anything else with the language as it's written now?
MR. UEOKA: B.1., correct?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: B.2...E.2., sorry, E.2.
MR. UEOKA: E.2., okay. I believe their...yeah, I guess, it's broad. We could narrow it. As it's stated
now, they don't want to obtain a Change in Zoning or a Community Plan Amendment; that is
why they're asking for these exemptions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But I guess Mr. Guzman and my questions both are, can they be...are
these exemptions only for the Change in Zoning, Community Plan Amendment or if a sharp
attorney were to look at this say, well hey, I'm exempt from 18.16.020 all the way?
MR. UEOKA: We can narrow, we can tighten it up.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That...
MR. UEOKA: I don't know what a smart attorney would be thinking.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have that on tape, right?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Couch.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Any further questions for Mr. Goode?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yeah, I get one for the subdivision.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: On the subdivision, for the Director. Maybe you can help, tell me
where I should be looking, 'cause when I looked, I couldn't find it. But as I understand it and
it's been said this afternoon, this is classified Ag, zoned Ag, community plan Ag. And I would
have thought that this overall property from C. Brewer days was subdivided at least once. So by
the County's sliding scale on Ag land, can this be done, this proposal, under the agricultural
sliding scale ordinance?
MR. UEOKA: I believe you probably cannot have lot sizes this size, but I think the exemptions do
account for that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, now, are you asking me to, now, disregard a portion of our code
to allow something like this to go forward?
MR. UEOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Interesting. Because that's why I was open to making comments
about the Change of Zoning thing, because maybe, to me, that's the only procedural, correct way
to get away from the sliding scale requirements of County Code. And I think you guys need to
come up with something real good in black and white, Counselor, to protect the Committee, the
Council and the property owner. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Goode? Mr. White followed by
Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: I think it would be helpful if we could get a verification as to whether
this parcel is subject to the sliding scale due to a prior subdivision. Is that possible?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, we can find out. I don't know how long your meeting's gonna go, but I can try to
find out rather quickly. But, in any case, the sliding scale would be, you know, based on Ag lots.
And I think the whole purpose of this 201G, the exercises essentially give it the zoning power...
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I understand that we have the ability to change that. It's just that
it's, I think, giving some folks the idea that the sliding scale is something you can still play with
to a great degree. So...
MR. GOODE: Yeah, I would imagine the applicant would know. The applicant would probably know
if there's a allocation agreement of lots on it. I have an answer for the grading, if that helps.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. One down.
MR. GOODE: Nice to have these devices handy. Okay. Well, we charge by the yards. So if
there's.. .it's $570 for the first 10,000 cubic yards plus $18 per 1,000 cubic yards or a fraction
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thereof. So I think, again, if we could ask the project engineer, they could give an idea what
they're looking at for grading totals. I think my previous comment that it was not very much in
the scheme of things, still holds.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. White?
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: No, I'm done. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. As a follow-up to Mr. Hokama's question, and I guess it
would be most likely directed to Ms. Ridao because I think she was around this time, you know,
his question was, what about the sliding scale, et cetera. We had the same...I remember this
issue came up when—`cause I worked on the Administration side of the Waikapu Gardens—and I
think that question came up, so we...there has been an answer as to why or how they got around
it in the Waikapu Gardens Phase I. 'Cause that was 411 lots that they...and, really, is it really
subdivided? And that goes back to my question that I asked way at the beginning, what's the
zoning over there? There really isn't zoning over there, 'cause it was a 201H...or it was a G at
the time, I think. And if somebody wants to add on to their house over there, are they in
noncompliance? I guess that's a question for Mr. Spence and Mr. Goode. What do you look at
over there in the old subdivision? And this is gonna happen with this new subdivision, and it
also ties into the question about the sliding scale, et cetera.
MR. GOODE: Well, for us, we would note in KIVA, our electronic database for all these properties, is
that it's subject to the resolution that passes this body and then whatever standards or whatever's
noted in the application. And so, for all intents and purposes, we would treat it as a single-family
residence, I guess, single-family lot with any other special requirements that may come out of
this deliberation and we'd note that and would be in our record files and our electronic files.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And still about the sliding scale, that's however they did it last time I
would imagine that's how they would do it this time? I guess for Mr. Ueoka possibly or
Ms. Ridao who was around during that one...oh, no, you weren't. That's right, you weren't,
sorry. Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: We could probably look at the 201G application. It's a few years back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's the same kinda thing?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. I really...I don't wanna lie to you or make something up, so we'll have to look
into that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Mr. Goode? Seeing none, thank you.
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MR. GOODE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we are going to take a break and return here at 3:15. We now stay,
stand in recess. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

3:06 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:24 p.m.

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting is now back in session. We've
had some discussion over here, and one is on our sidewalks. And from Phase I, exemptions from
18.20.070, sidewalks and curbs and gutters shall be granted to allow the construction of Waiale
Road between Kuikahi Drive and East Waiko Road to be constructed to standards set forth in
Attachment B which is incorporated herein for reference. A section of Waiale Road shall be
dedicated to the County of Maui upon completion of construction. And there was a question to
where if this Phase I condition goes to Phase II is ... (inaudible)... and I'd like to ask Corporation
Counsel and Mr. Goode to comment.
MR. UEOKA: You know, if the...I think to just clarify things, the Council may wanna modify the
exemption list to include an exemption from 18.20.070 and 18.20.080 for the current exemption
list for Phase II just for clarification purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Can you repeat that, please?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah ... (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't know where you guys are.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, where are we? He's talking driveways.
MR. UEOKA: In Phase I, there was on the...Phase I, Waikapu Garden exemption list, there was a
section which had an exemption from Section 18.20.070, Maui County Code, Sidewalks, and
Section 18.20.080, Maui County Code, Curbs and Gutters. I don't know if you guys have that in
front of you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we don't.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, we don't.
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MR. UEOKA: But that was the exemption list from Phase I. Just for consistency and to make sure
there's no confusion, I believe the developer does desire to be exempt from sidewalks, curbs and
gutters on Waiale and Waiko Road. If they are required, I believe they are going to do
sidewalks, curbs and gutters on the interior of the development, because they do intend on
dedicating the roads, so it would be a requirement. But I think they just don't wanna do anything
on Waiale and Waiko. So if the Council desires, maybe including that as a modification to the
exemption list would be helpful for clarity going forward.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. We clear on that?
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair, excuse me.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just to make it very simple, what you're saying is, you'd like us,
now, to include that exemption which we gave Phase I?
CHAIR CARROLL: If we wish to give them the exemption, yes, we need to include that in this
document.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If not, then they would have to put sidewalks, curbs and gutters
along Waiko and the frontage of the property, Waiko and Waiale?
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay...
MR. UEOKA: Chair, if I may?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just to clarify.
MR. UEOKA: We're not 100 percent sure if they would be required or not. It would need to be further
vetted as to exactly what they're planning on doing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Interior, that we know, they'd wanna do that.
MR. UEOKA: They're gonna...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's all part of their plan. But it's the exterior along Waiale and
Waiko which at this time has no sidewalks or gutters in any portion starting if they wanted to go
far back to Kuikahi Highway [sic] all the way up to Waiko Road and from Waiko Road all the
way up to Honoapiilani down to Kuikuilani [sic]. As far as I know, there's no sidewalks.
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MR. UEOKA: Yes. We're not 100 percent sure if they'd be required to do sidewalks if not granted this
exemption. We don't think they would be, so just for...to be safe and to make it clear.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To make it uniform as what we had done in Phase I?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you for that...I'll let others ask questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, if we wish that exemption to be there, we can always add that in
afterwards. Just so we're aware that if we do want that, to make sure it does happen, we can add
it at a later time. . . . (Clears throat) . . . Excuse me. Mr. Goode, you have any closing
statement or anything you'd like to say; or Members, do you have anything to follow?
Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No, we would agree with Mr. Ueoka. I think if the Council
desires to not have curb, gutter and sidewalk along Waiale and Waiko fronting this property,
then let's have a specific exemption for that, much easier for our staff in moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman. So when, along in the process, would the
appropriate department be aware of whether or not, let's say, appropriate exemption or not,
regarding that subdivision?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, it'd be during the subdivision process when we get to the construction plans and
actually what's being proposed be constructed is when we would require 'ern.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I appreciate it, Director. And the reason I ask that is, normally,
if you're gonna come to us, we like to know what is the actuals. We're gonna be either granting
or not granting and not all this, you know. You're telling me to make decision after we make a
decision we going find out whether or not it's applicable or not. And, for me, that's really
okole...inside out. You know, 'cause I think we would like to know, before we make the
decision, what is applicable, you know. So we make the better decision as it refers to this
request, how the departments then gonna interpret and implement the requirements of the
Council's decision. I guess, you know, with Ms. Baisa, we got a lot more to work on then just
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the General Plan ordinance and maybe gotta work on this ordinance or this housing option
further. But that's my only concern, please, you know, is I think we would like to know the
realities before we make the call. Chairman, I don't know if Mr. Ueoka has a response -CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --if you'd allow him?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. I'm not anywhere near an expert on this, but if I read 18.20.070, it talks about
sidewalks shall be required by Director on one side of the street and all areas zoned Residential,
Duplex or Interim provided that, if warranted by Public Safety or other identified public benefit,
the Director may require sidewalks on both sides of street. Concrete sidewalks, six feet wide on
both shall be required in areas zoned Apartment, Hotel, Business and Industrial. That's why I'm
not 100 percent sure that this project will be required to have sidewalks fronting it, because I
think the property's still zoned Ag.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gee, that switches when we need it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Eh, Counselor, thank you for, you know, bringing up that point.
And that's part of the issue with this project, yeah. You know, they trying to maintain Ag
classification, Ag Community Plan, Ag zoning; and, yet, this is all about urbanized permitted
uses.
MR. UEOKA: And there is some discretion on the part of the Director, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I understand that. But, you know, when you trying to sell me
on 100 percent affordable and then throw in one commercial component on Ag land in one urban
area, I get lots of issues with that, okay, circumventing certain things. 'Cause I think, you know,
the Council worked hard on creating a policy regarding agricultural land, agricultural uses and a
sliding scale that made sense for the whole County, and I would hate to throw that whole work
down on this one project. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I guess it's for Mr. Goode. You know,
we've had a situation on another affordable housing project several Councils back that requested
exemptions from curb, gutters, sidewalks and road upgrades. And, now, we're having people
who live in that area coming saying, hey, our road's all messed up, and we're senior citizens and
we can't get in and out, when is the County gonna fix this? So I guess this body has to
determine--and it's not as bad as that situation--but this body has to determine, if we're gonna do
curb, gutter, sidewalks all the way up and down Waiale, are we saying that the whole County's
gonna pay for this at a future time or at least, you know, this project, if we're saying, they're not
exempt, then we're gonna ask them to pay for a small amount? But ultimately, with our
complete streets, which I don't see any kind of exemptions out of that, we ask for curb, gutter,
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sidewalks and bike paths even. So the question is, do we as this body wanna say, okay, these
guys, in order to get people into the affordable homes, which I can support, don't have to put
those in? But ultimately, further down the line, we as a County are going to have to go in...the
whole County's gonna have to pay for all the way up and down Waiale drive, curb, gutter,
sidewalks once we start getting our complete streets and the Central Maui bike path and all kinds
of stuff that's going on that we're gonna ultimately have to pay for. I guess the question to you,
Mr. Goode, is, if we require just that small area for curb, gutter, sidewalk in the scheme of
things, that's a manini amount compared to what you're gonna have to do all the way, as much
as you can, up and down Waiale Drive, is that right?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: Well, I guess I'd define, manini. But it's a small percentage I guess, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Relative. Small percentage, yeah.
MR. GOODE: Small percentage. And, Mr. Chair, I'm sorry, real quick. I did get an answer to
Mr. White's question about the Ag allocation. Our records, if I have the right lot here, indicates
that there are, allocated, two future lots of two acres or more. 'Cause it's only ten acres, so it has
to be. So it looks like they had allocated two lots. So if they were to subdivide it under the Ag,
they can only get one more lot out of it. Anyway, I just wanted to give that information to you
folks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, ultimately, with our complete streets and whatnot, are you, even
in the long term, planning on curb, gutter, sidewalk all the way up and down Waiale as much as
possible?
MR. GOODE: I'd say, yes. It's a major collector for the area. There's gonna be more development in
the General Plan in that whole Waiko area in Waikapu. It's one of our bigger growth areas.
People are gonna need to get back and forth to Wailuku, Kahului. And so, yes, I'd say, in the
long term, that would be, you know, a higher priority than other rural areas.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So you're saying, it's a small percentage on that one side of the
road just for that little bit. It's better to give us a choice to either allow for lower-priced homes
for those 48 people versus the small amount of increase in cost that would be, again,
percentage-wise for the County to take care of that? So that's our decision?
MR. GOODE: That's your decision, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Goode?
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MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair? Staff would just note that the Phase I exemption dealt with Waiale Road
only between Kuikahi and Waiko. So it's unclear. If the Council decides to.. .or the Committee
decides to recommend an exemption for curbs, gutters, sidewalks, staff would need some
assistance. There's an Attachment B to the exemption that says, what standard it would be
developed to. I don't know whether that would also apply to Waiale as well as Waiko Road.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Did everybody understand that?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: No, can you repeat?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may just ask Ms. Nakata?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Where is that exhibit that you just referenced to please, Ms. Nakata?
MS. NAKATA: There is a resolution, 04-116 -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. NAKATA: --that approved the Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision pursuant to 201G-118.
That was Phase I. And in...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We don't have that.
MS. NAKATA: It's not been distributed -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, got it.
MS. NAKATA: --to the Committee, yet, I apologize. But the exemption that I believe Mr. Ueoka and
Mr. Goode were referring to refers to an attachment which shows roadway construction drawing
standards.
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes?
MR. UEOKA: I believe since Waiale Road between Kuikahi Drive and East Waiko Road has already
been constructed, we wouldn't need to attach design standards. We probably just would include
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limiting language or request that you include limiting language that says it only applies to the
frontage of this property on East Waiko Road and Waiale Road; that would be the limiting
language to keep it concise.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that exemption for that project goes all the way down to Waiko
Road. So wouldn't that exemption pretty much still be in effect even if this new project comes
in if we were to say, exempt...or one way or the other, that exemption is already there, is it not?
CHAIR CARROLL: Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: Being that you're asking the question, we're not sure either, so we'd less like it to be
clear in moving forward in the exemption list.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you know, this is fine, okay. So just for clarification, right
now, so that I fully understand and the public understands, that from Kuikahi to Waiko Road, no
curbs and gutters, they were exempt from doing that. What about other developments that are
coming along like the church and the school, which is between Kuikahi? And I think that's off
the subject, but you didn't say, Kuikahi to Waiko.
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Chair? The exemption is rather specific, shall be granted to allow the construction
of Waiale Road between Kuikahi Drive and east Waiko Road. So I'm gonna assume, I'm not an
expert on this, but when you're building a road, sometimes you're required to build sidewalks.
And since the developer was required to build the road, they were exempted from building these
sidewalks while they were building the road. Whether or not future projects will be required to
do sidewalk frontage when they go for subdivision or building permit, I'm not sure. That would
be a question for Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't think I wanna get into this, 'cause there's lawyers
watching and I think we're gonna be in trouble.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright, Members, we're gonna leave this for now. But the bottom line is, if we
wanna make sure that they have this exemption, if we decide we want it, we should put it inside
the existing document and not count on Phase I. Alright, any further questions for Mr. Goode?
If not, thank you very much, appreciate your attendance. And we will now have Mr. Spence.
Please identify yourself at the microphone, Mr. Spence.
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MR. SPENCE: I'm William Spence. I am the Planning Director for Maui County.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Before I open the floor, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: You had a question earlier about running with the land?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Mr. Spence...
CHAIR CARROLL: If you would like to ask Mr. Spence that -COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: --perhaps he can help you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. I don't know if you heard the question I had asked
earlier about running with the land as far as.. .what was I asking now? Now I forgot. I'm sorry,
I got a senior moment, gang, I apologize. Can you remind me, Mr. Chair, 'cause you were
taking...or some...if the Staff would remind me? I have a senior moment, now. I've just gone
blank. Ms. Nakata, do you remember my question as far as something running with the land?
Was it the sewer?
CHAIR CARROLL: The sewer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sewer, yeah. There you go. I told you...
CHAIR CARROLL: That's the sewer, whether that ran with the land...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you know, they were putting in the laterals, and instead of a
single lateral, they were putting in, you remember, that Y or that T or whatever, I forget exactly
what it was. And somehow, because that road was private, you know, but if down the road they
were to come back and say, oh, County, you take over, you know, you want us to take over. Just
to protect us, we make it part of running with the land like first phase was, that was the question.
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Now that I remember, thank you very much.
MR. SPENCE: Okay. And I think that's a good question, and I think because it applies to a lot of the
questions that the Members have asked other directors.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
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MR. SPENCE: What the applicant is requesting under this provision of the law, of Hawaii Revised
Statutes, is, you know, they're allowed to ask for exemptions from such a thing as, you know,
subdivision from zoning requirements, all these different things. And the County Council has, in
the past, approved projects by resolution. Okay. That resolution, you know, as Director Goode
had previously mentioned, that resolution goes into the KIVA system as a related document and
we'll put it into all of the, assuming this is passed, assuming the property's subdivided, et cetera,
we'll put in in KIVA that this is subject to a 201H approval. And anybody in the County,
anybody that's processing permits whether it be Planning or DSA or, you know, Wastewater or
whatever, can go in there and see what those conditions are, what those exemptions are. And if
it says...if this Council chose to say, you can have those combined laterals, but the County will
never take responsibility for their maintenance, I mean that would be one of the things that
would go into KIVA. And that could only then change by, I would imagine, by other resolution
by the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, also, the other question I had was about extensions, add-ons, I
mean...
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that was the other part of the question was, one was the
sewer.. .and that now my memory's just beginning to come back, I apologize, long day.
MR. SPENCE: Right. I looked at, at least, the list of exemptions that I have. Understand there's been a
couple other requests. There would be Exemption F.1. as an exemption from the Ag district.
And what they're saying here is, they wanna exempt from the standards and the requirements of
the County Agricultural District, but then they wanna replace it with these other standards:
5,000 square foot minimum lot size, height, setbacks and one or two-story homes. There's
nothing in there that would prohibit somebody from, say, enclosing a lanai or adding another
bedroom. So long as they kept...and these setbacks and this height restriction, by the way, are
already a part of our County Code, those are the standards we use in the Residential district;
5,000 square feet is smaller, however. But so long as they fit within that envelope, so long as
they stay...property
. owner stays within those setbacks and that height restriction, I don't see any
problem whatsoever in getting a building permit to add another bedroom, enclose a lanai, add a
second story so long as they meet these other things I mean the Council could change that as a
part of your exemption if you so desired, but this is pretty standard County zoning standards.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mister...I'll let others ask questions; but thank
you, Mr. Spence. Those were my two main questions.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair
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CHAIR CARROLL: Members, before we continue, we will be adjourning this meeting at 4:30. The
floor is open. Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for bringing Director Spence this afternoon.
Director, you know, part of my concern with this proposal is the retention of the agricultural
designation for old components and, yet, doing nothing with ag, per se. Is there a point where if
there is some type of noncompliance with the project, then the underlying zoning and
classification goes back into effect? Because, by law, that is still the zoning and classification,
Agriculture. So is there a point of potential noncompliance we should be at least aware of that
would revert back to the underlying land use?
MR. SPENCE: That's a good question. And because, as you state, the underlying zoning would remain
Agriculture, et cetera. Is there a point where it would revert back? I'm not sure. I think if there
was an enforcement issue -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: --we wouldn't look at the underlying zoning What we would look at would be
whatever resolution the Council passed, because those are the conditions by which this project
would be built. So...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And I see your point, Director, and that's a very good point. So then
my question comes, so what is the purpose of retaining all the underlying land use designations
then? Why wouldn't we go in and have them and say, we can initiate but let's change it to what
it really is then, it's Urban, it's Residential, and we'll initiate it. But we will approve the project
through the reso, but we are gonna take care of the land use designations to have it more
appropriate. And I don't have to feel bad that, you know, we screwing our ag policy and the
Code and everything else.
MR. SPENCE: Right. And I would tend to agree with you. I mean say you did pass this by resolution
and then also passed another resolution to initiate the zoning with certain conditions or
something like that. It eliminates whatever potential questions would come up, you know, down
the line. And I don't know if it would ever be a County question, but say one of financing. You
know, say 30 years from now after we're all gone, somebody wants to refinance their house or
something like that -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: --and that lender, you know--and lending practices and laws have changed for whatever
reason--that lender may look at that 201H and go, that's great, but the zoning's still Ag. So
would I feel better if it was Urban, Single-Family and R-whatever? I would feel better with that.
It's just a lot cleaner for everybody. But I mean, that said, for County administrating purposes,
we follow whatever resolution, you know; until something else changes, we would follow the
resolution passed by this Council.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. No, I'm just trying to see if there's more than an up-down or
modified option for this proposal, you know, I mean, you know, I'm looking forward.
Eventually the Chair has his own ideas and thoughts that I'm looking forward to. So but I just
trying to find out, you know, if there's other options that we could at least consider besides the
basic normally is yes, no or yes with adjustments.
MR. SPENCE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The last one I wanted to ask you is, you know, if we should consider
and grant all the exemptions, which for me is quite a bit and has value, what's your thoughts
about, you know, 'cause I have some concerns about coming in too quickly and asking us for all
the subdivision requirements for the whole tax base to pay or saying, for ten years, you cannot
even ask for one sidewalk improvement since you got all these exemptions for the initial
approval and buildout?
MR. SPENCE: I think that's...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And that's how you got your great price -MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --because you don't have all of these things that now you might be
asked and everybody else is gonna have to pay for?
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, buyers should be aware of that. I know that the Planning Department's not so
involved with these, you know, all the inspections and the reductions and curbs, gutters,
sidewalks and all those kinda money-saving, you know, items. Certainly it reduces the cost of
housing to reduce the expense of housing. I know, that's a political decision. Is the public good
best served by granting all these exemptions and sharing the cost for, you know, throughout the
County or not? I don't know. That's, to me, that's a good debate.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's a good question, Director -MR. SPENCE: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --I would say, yeah. And you're gonna get multiple answers
depending if you're the one that's trying to buy the house -MR. SPENCE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --versus the guy that gotta pay the bill, pay the taxes -MR. SPENCE: Yeah, I agree.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --to pay for that additional amenities, so...
MR. SPENCE: And that's certainly a worthy discussion with this body.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Chairman, thank you for my opportunity with the Director.
I'm sure the other Members have their good questions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair; and thank you, Director for being here. Looking
at your Department's response in regards from Long Range with the cemetery, and I believe they
initially asked for a ten-foot buffer. Long Range says, that's very insufficient to protect
cemetery and is wanting 25, and I believe applicant has been stating 15 feet.
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So my question is, how did you folks determine that the 25-foot,
you know, buffer was better than the ten and if you're okay with the 15?
MR. SPENCE: . . . (Coughed) . . . Excuse me. I'm not sure how staff came up with the 25-foot
recommendation. I do know--and, you know, their archaeologist is here--I do know that, you
know, this is a very old cemetery, and our very old cemeteries do have a tendency to have a lot
of unmarked graves. So that's a concern. I just hear stories about, you know, incidences in this
area, whatnot, the uncovering of unmarked graves. So I think, as staff has made a
recommendation, which, you know, they're just erring on the side of caution. And I think that's
worth some discussion, you know. But, you know, caution with these kinds of things can be
definitely a good thing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Thank you for your response, Director. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Okay, go ahead, Don.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I yield to Don.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. You know, Mr. Hokama brought up an interesting thing
about changing the...and you kind of agreed to 'em, you'd feel better if we changed the zoning
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and whatnot. My only concern would be, then they would be in noncompliance to.. .if we went
to R-1, because I think the minimum lot size is...
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So how do we rectify that or...
MR. SPENCE: You would just grant conditional zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With a...bring...
MR. SPENCE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: And whatever other things that you'd pass within the resolution.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the other question would be, we would have to do that before they
start selling individual lots; or, otherwise, we'd, you know, we're gonna have 48 people who all
of a sudden are having the zoning changed, I would think.
MR. SPENCE: No, you could.. .I would think you could do it.. .I mean you could do it all at once.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, that's what I'm saying, we should probably do it before they sell
all the individual lots as opposed to...
MR. SPENCE: I mean you could certainly...with the process available to this Council, by
resolution.. .what is it that you pass a resolution and 90 days we have...you have 45 days to get it
down to the Planning Commission and get it back up to this Council. That's gonna be way faster
than...and I'm not...please don't any of the Council members misunderstand me. I'm not
saying, don't go through with this 201H process. What I'm saying, for the future, you know, it
would just be a lot cleaner if it had all the proper zoning involved with it. I think this is a very
valuable process, you know, for everybody to go through. I mean if the Council initiated zoning
after this 201H process, you know, we have deadlines to meet, et cetera, and get back up to you.
So it would be way before subdivision was finalized.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: Oh, no, I think it's 90 days...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, 'cause we have like.. .we have 45 days to get this done, and...
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MR. SPENCE: Yeah, the 201H.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, the 201H.
MR. SPENCE: If after that -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: --you were to send a resolution down to propose zoning for, you know, because there's
a legislative process that must be followed, you know, and the Council can initiate that. To hold
a public hearing, et cetera, we have only a certain amount of time to get it back up to you. That
would not stop the 201H process -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: --or delay the remaining processing.
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess my question would be either to you or to Mr. Ueoka. I mean
we have Phase I and we have--I don't know what Kaiwahine ..I think they were properly zoned
or at least close to properly zoned--but we had Kula Ridge -MR. SPENCE: Uh-huh.
COLTNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and some Lanai projects that are all 201H -MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and Kahoma as well, I believe. And we didn't change the zoning on
them. I'm just wondering if we're gonna go that route, do we need to do that for all the rest?
MR. SPENCE: I think it's a good idea. Or we can wait till, you know, we institute comprehensive
zoning There's a lot of different ways to do it. Comprehensive zoning, as the Council members
can imagine with being in the middle of the community...or starting the community plan
process, it's quite a ways away.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any more questions for Mr. Spence?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, Mister.. .I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino had asked to speak.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, go ahead. I'll let her.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay. Let's see. Item, on their exemptions, A.2., in regards to
Protected Area designation -MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Preservation, they wanna be exempted from that. And I'm trying
to figure out what the comment was from Long Range. It just states where it's located on a map
and what it means in our General Plan and what have you. So I'm just.. .what is your take, your
Department's take on that exemption?
MR. SPENCE: Okay. The, yeah, the Council members remember back to the Maui Island Plan process
and the whole discussion. We had a whole, big discussion about the protected areas. And there
was lots of things on the Growth Maps that we had the big debate of, okay, are these protected
areas, is it by regulation, are they the same force and effect of law as the Growth Boundaries?
And we had that big discussion. And the Council decided, with recommendation by the
Department and by Corp. Counsel, to put all those protected areas on diagrams and then include
language in the plan that if a protected area was to be developed, that we would notify the
County Council. And the idea was, is once the Council was aware that an area that was
protected for some reason or other, whether it be for views or whether it be sensitive habitat or,
you know, something that should be a park, et cetera, once those things came to light, the
Council could take some kind of action on it either offer to buy it or say, no, this shouldn't have
been a protected area or whatever the case may be. But so we have notified the Council that this
is a protected area.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So it's just to notify us, and then in it's in our court to decide
what to do with it.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, and I'll say, in my discussion with staff, I mean I know it's close to the
graveyard. Really the main protected area that runs through there is the stream. And if you were
to look at a larger blowup or actually from smaller scale map...a larger scale map, you would see
that protected area following the streambed from pretty much the mountain all the way to Kealia
Pond.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Director; thank you, Chair
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MR. SPENCE: Sure.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any more...Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's okay. Some of the questions I were gonna ask, was asked. So
that's being fair, you know, 'cause I don't wanna seem to dominate the.. .which, you know, I
apologize. One more clarification just so that, you know, at the meeting this morning at the site
inspection this morning, Mr. Bagoyo mentioned that we were...that they were already with a
five-foot setback for the property line and another...oh, six-foot property line and another
15 fit.. .feet, I should say, excuse me. And so they would have a total of 21 feet between the
property lines and the line on where they...the area of the cemetery has been designated. So
there would be more like 21 not 15 -MR. SPENCE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --just so that you're clear on that. And that one came from the
developer's representative; and hopefully, you know, you can.. .if there's a question, we can ask
him again. But I was certain that's what I heard this morning. And I think Ms. Ridao and I think
most of the Council members that were there heard that this morning. So I think that kinda in
my mind, you know, and they have also said--I don't know if you were here earlier--that a vinyl
wall, like they have on the other side, Phase I--will be instituted around this property to also
separate the subdivision from all of the other, especially the cemetery, so there would be some
separation.
MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTOR1NO: So I think they're trying to meet that requirement.
MR. SPENCE: And I'm not...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (Coughed) . . . Excuse me.
MR. SPENCE: I'll just say, when staff made the recommendation for 25 feet, I'm not sure if they did or
did not review the archaeological survey. Perhaps, that's a question of this Committee. I mean I
don't wanna burden landowners any more than, you know, we have to while we're protecting
resources. So if the Council is comfortable that the cultural resource is protected, that's, you
know, I'm good with that. It just draws a question. So I'll leave that to the Council members.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well maybe, Mr. Chair, at a later point, I guess it's in here, so I
guess we can go look it up 'cause it's all part of this report. So it must be in this report itself
For which, you know, some of us have taken some time to read it, but I didn't go that far into
it -MR. SPENCE: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --as far as the archaeological report.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. And the 21 feet, you know, the 15 feet plus the additional, I mean that may be
perfectly adequate. I'm not saying it's not.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I appreciate that. Thank you for that clarification and -MR. SPENCE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --thank you, Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: Sure.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Any further questions for Mr. Spence?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I just get one.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: You know, from a infill kinda thing, makes a lot of sense, this
project, to me.
MR. SPENCE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And so, you know, from that standpoint, I can say, you know, it
makes sense and I can be supportive. But, you know, I grew up in a time when Waikapu was
Waikapu. And you know of my concern. I am not into one megalopolis where Kahului,
Wailuku, now Waikapu potentially. I guess we could throw in Happy Valley eventually,
Waiehu, Waihee. But I don't wanna see blurred community lines. I think our people and our
towns are special enough that they should keep their identities. And so, you know, I'm just
wondering with this more potential, more projects like this with the project across Tropical
Plantation, is this what the Administration is gonna push for, to just have one sprawl, a sprawl, a
small sprawl or whatever we wanna call it. But it's like nut grass, you know, once it gets
invaded in your yard, it kinda takes over.
MR. SPENCE: Sure. And I don't think that's anything that this Administration's going to push for.
During the Maui Island Plan and actually I've met with any number of the members of the
Waikapu Community Association, and they're very concerned about exactly what you're talking
about with Wailuku Heights blending into Waikapu across the hillside...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Kehalani is moving, you know, I mean...
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MR. SPENCE: Yeah. Until there is no distinction between the communities. And that has been...I
mean that was a major topic of discussion during the Maui Island Plan. And you see some of the
proposed projects with conditions on them, how to keep it separate, et cetera.
COLTNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So is there planning tools you could recommend to us? If we wanted
to move this project forward, are there planning tools or planning practices that can try and still
help maintain some identity for the Waikapu community instead of just be swallowed up by
Wailuku?
MR. SPENCE: Yes. Some of those things are already in the plan. I mean there was a lot of buffers put
in, those kinds of things. Some of it's just going to be working with the landowner when they
come in for their zoning, I mean, and following the things outlined in the plan.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Are there things that you would recommend to us as part of verbiage
for modification, I guess, would be the way to state it that we, you know, you have some ideas
that we might wanna entertain and present to the proposer, developer as a way of helping out on
multiple fronts? Because that, you know, I cannot tell how much it's an important priority for
me to maintain community character.
MR. SPENCE: I think, I mean, it's filling it in, it's filling in the space already that is separating the
communities. So I think that's.. .I mean for this particular project, I think that's unavoidable. I
think one thing we could do which, you know, the Chair had asked previous directors, would you
like to add anything? I think what I would like to do is, when they go...assuming the Council
grants the request for commercial, I would like to have the opportunity to work with the
landowner and with the community on the design of that commercial, so it doesn't just become a
space in the middle of, you know, that area where, you know, you could just build a rectangular
box with a sign on it, and we don't want that. You know, we would like...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I had hoped you would've come up with how to...that project could
enhance the existing commercial of Waikapu town.
MR. SPENCE: It could.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. SPENCE: And...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's of more of importance and priority to me, especially how...I
mean, you know, I know Mr. Victorino drives it by. I drive it a lot 'cause I have family in that
area.
MR. SPENCE: Sure.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And from Waiale up toward Waiko mauka, I mean that's your true
old residential, and they deal with a lot of traffic.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And you would think local people maa about driving within old
residential at reasonable speeds, but we get lot of people who are not maa to the island. And so
they bring their driving skills from someplace else to here; and let me tell you, it don't fit, okay.
Not by the graveyard, not by the little bridge, not toward that, you know, lighted intersection.
So, for me, yeah, that's a problem area, too. And I support the community's need for traffic to
go away from that area.
MR. SPENCE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: But, you know, I was hoping you would tell us the easiest and
simplest thing is put signage, this is Waikapu, old Waikapu.
MR. SPENCE: We could do that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And help with the identification and let those old families know that
hey, we still would see them as Waikapu and not New Wailuku or Wailuku West or whatever it
be. You know, I mean, I'm sorry, Chairman. I thank you for letting me vent, but I think this is
important because it's happening on this island, and we gotta talk about it. Because there's a lot
of people with pent-up frustrations, let me tell you, 'cause they vented to me. There's a lot of
pent-up, local frustration in our people out there. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Mr. Guzman, do you have something?
VICE-CHAIR GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I don't have any further questions for the Department. I
just wanted to make a comment in terms of just a follow-up with my colleague, Mr. Hokama. I
agree where he's coming from in terms of making sure that Waikapu has its...remains Waikapu.
And it's unfortunate that we don't have that form-based code that we had that presentation on.
And I think that's something that would work wonderful in this situation. But in terms of the
affordable housing, I think this is a commendable project which basically, I believe, is needed in
our community. And whatever it takes to somehow get it going, I think it's commendable for the
developer to take on this type of project in these economic times. And so for the betterment of
all working families in the community, I think it's a great project. And I think that's what we all
believe in and I also believe that we need to make sure that we work together in trying to get this
off the ground. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
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CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino followed by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and to tack along, you know as we did our community plan
and that would be...I mean the Island Plan, the community plan and the community segment of
the plan will be coming up in not too distant future, so then the communities will have a say in
some of these areas that where Mr. Hokama talks about and I agree. And we have put in in the
Island Plan segregation of these areas -MR. SPENCE: Right.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for open space between Wailuku and Waikapu. The challenge
we face is you got the lower section which is building out the church and then the school and
then right into Waikapu; and that's been all approved, and then we can't stop that. You know,
and we hope with the landowners--and you mentioned that, Mr. Spence--that we could at least
asked them to put some buffer between the school and the church and as well as, you know,
Waikapu Gardens and not run right into Waikapu. So already the lower section is kind of really
out of the, you know, it's kinda like already been done and decided on, Mr. Chair, so it's really
difficult. Upper side, we've already got assurances of open space and linear park and stuff like
that to separate Wailuku from Waiale. But Waiale is built all in where Waikapu...and that was
all open land. So it's kinda like putting the cart behind...cart before the horse or cart behind the
horse or whatever. It's kinda late, but we have tried in our Island Plan to protect those areas.
And so, like you say, Mr. Hokama, maybe putting a sign; but that doesn't give you that
separation that the people really want, that's the real problem.
MR. SPENCE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so on the mauka side, we got some separation. On the makai
side of the highway, not so good, you know. Hopefully, those landowners like Emmanuel
Lutheran and as well as the fellowship, the Christian Fellowship or whatever, yeah, that they will
do what they can to give some separation between, you know, Wailuku and Waikapu. But,
Chair, it's one of those, we gotta fight the battle, but the battle's kind of been lost in this area
except for what we've already preserved. So hopefully, we can keep that from getting any
further out of hand. But, I agree, if you go to the Mainland, that same thing happens. You go
from Hermosa Beach to Redondo Beach to Manhattan. They used to be all separated
communities. Now, they all grown together, and you don't know you even left those areas.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, Mr. Spence, the one thing that we haven't
discussed yet is the commercial piece.
MR. SPENCE: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I would like to ask you if you're okay...I don't know if you've
seen...you indicated that you apparently haven't seen the new list of exemptions, et cetera. One
of them is they added a kind of a modification. It says, for F.2., the commercial center shall be
subject to the restrictions contained in Chapter 19.6 [sic], Maui County Code, pertaining to B-1,
Neighborhood Business Districts. Are you comfortable with those uses in that area, in particular,
essentially, Items N through S, which is gasoline retailing, single-family dwelling per lot, bed
and breakfast home, home occupation and short-term rental homes or is that something that we
may wanna kinda exclude from that list of B-1? And, oh yeah, by the way, we're right in the
middle of changing B-1.
MR. SPENCE: That's true, too.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There are some other.. .1 don't think we messed around too much with
that, but there are...I guess we have to work with Mr. Ueoka or Council to say which B-1 are we
going to refer. We have to only refer to this one, I guess, because the other one isn't official.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata has distributed...I was gonna bring this up afterward and distribute it,
but Mr. Couch is always thinking ahead. Thank you. And this is just so the Members are well
aware that what is in...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, that's what I just read off. Are you okay with all those? And I
guess that's also the question for the rest of the Members, if we're okay with all those or if we're
gonna have to start striking some of that stuff?
MR. SPENCE: The way that I look at this is...and I'm sorry this comes up really late, I would've loved
to have some time to talk to the applicant about this -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: --so I'm, you know, I'm...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And pardon me for interrupting. It's not so much for this instance,
because they say it's gonna be a convenience store and a couple offices, that's fine. But if
they're no longer the owners and then it burns -MR. SPENCE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --down or something like that, all of a sudden it's a open flood gate as
to all these other uses that can go there.
MR. SPENCE: I'm thinking 20, 30 years down the line, I think if this had gone the normal course and,
you know, of Change in Zoning and all the rest of that, I mean we would've had this discussion,
what's appropriate on this corner and what's the purpose of it. I think that neighborhood stores
are great.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. SPENCE: I mean it goes to quality of life, it goes to not having to drive all the way to Safeway,
not spending the extra dollars and wear and tear on your car, I think it's perfectly appropriate to
have neighborhood stores within walking distance of your residence. That said, do you
want...and I think some of these other uses are perfectly fine. Candy may not be so good for
your health, but I do like ice cream. Okay. I'm not sure you need a liquor store if you have a
regular store, bakery, I mean all those things can really add to the character of a community. Do
you want, you know, there's a lot of concern about traffic on Waiko Road, so would you want a
gasoline station there? And I understand this particular part of the property is outside of
wellhead protection area, so I'm not sure if that's a concern; but it could be noted. All the home
occupation, short-term rental homes, I'm not too concerned about those within the business area.
You might wanna say something about the project itself. If it's being approved as an affordable
housing project, you may wanna say, no short-term rental homes, no B&Bs. But if we had gone
the normal course of this and the request for B-1 neighborhood business, I think we would
probably, with this Council and with the landowner, go through the list of things and say, okay,
what's appropriate on this corner, what adds to what we talked about the identity of Waikapu,
what would take away from it? So I think that's sort of...I'm not comfortable with a gasoline
retailer, liquor store, I think those things could go, or best, other places. But if you had
neighborhood grocery store, you know, they're gonna sell beer, wine, your basic goods that
everybody buys. It becomes a really good gathering place for the communities; say, hi, to your
neighbor; those kinds of things.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Chair, follow up?
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The other thing that was mentioned when I heard about this project
before was, potentially small offices; but I don't see that as listed as a permitted use in B-1, so
we would.. .I'm guessing that it would be cleaner, Mr. Chair, if we put a list of permitted uses in
this restriction, I guess, or exemption or whatever you wanna...
MR. SPENCE: Yeah. I think that would be appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, we can think about that, too. Even this existing list, there's some things
that...gasoline retailing, usually that thing's open all night. Do you want that in your residential
neighborhood? Or as the liquor store, usually that...things like that we need to consider what the
impact would be being so close to this community. So we will need to consider what we are
going to allow over there. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can I ask for a short recess, sir? Short, one minute.
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CHAIR CARROLL: We're going to adjourn in five minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I. . .
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. One-minute recess. Stand in recess. . . . (gavel). . .
RECESS:

4:24 p.m.

RECONVENE: 4:27 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(gavel). . . Land Use Committee meeting of September 4, 2013 is back in
session. Members, we have a few more minutes. Is there any other questions for Mr. Spence?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not for Mr. Spence, but I do have one specific request for you,
Chair, but after you done with Mr. Spence.
CHAIR CARROLL: You're gonna have to prepare it for the next meeting.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It going be quick, very quick.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah, because we are going to adjourn in three minutes.
COLTNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, and it's a one-minute question. Could we have.. .I'm
requesting and I think most of us would like to have...
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, any request that we'd like to have it now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. The request I'd have is, I'd like to have a cost breakdown
on all these exemptions at the...and I think everybody's asked that question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, we already have that request.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So on all of 'em, now, not just on some of 'ern, but all of
'ern.
CHAIR CARROLL: We already have that request.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair'?
CHAIR CARROLL: Are there any other requests? Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. At some point, when we get to talk to the developer, I'm gonna be
very interested in some estimates of what these units will be going for.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you, Chair. I think you had Parks and Rec on call.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is there a way to, perhaps, get them here for the next meeting that
we were...
CHAIR CARROLL: We'll have them here at the next meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any other further request? Yes, Corporation Counsel?
MR. UEOKA: I believe the developer is paying the park assessment fee for the subdivision. I do not
believe it's an exemption. .just for information purposes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. We'll still have them over here, though.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and I still have questions. Yeah, I still have further
questions. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Alright. Thank you, Members. We had thought to.. .there was discussion about
recessing this meeting, but the Chair determines that it wouldn't be appropriate because it's nine
days. And usually, through our policy, if there is time to post for a new meeting as far as the
Land Use Committee goes, that we adjourn and then we post. The next meeting will be 9:00
a.m., Thursday, the 12 th ; 9:00 a.m., Thursday, the 12 th ; and that is the best we can do. Be aware
that this.. .we do these 201Hs because it's our opportunity to get affordable housing to our
people. It is not easy, it is very difficult and we need to seriously consider all of the...every part
of the request. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, question. On the 12 th , is that a half-a-day meeting or an all-day
meeting?
CHAIR CARROLL: That would be all day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're looking for an all-day meeting?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, we would need an all-day meeting. Remember, we very constrained over
here as far as time. It is possible--and I have not asked the Chair, yet--if we cannot finish on the
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12th after the Council meeting on the 20 th , it is possible, but I have not requested that. Yes,
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, and I understand the procedures that we have to do to
request stuff, but potentially, we usually keep the day of Council meetings open. Any
chance...oh, we would have to post it wouldn't we for Friday? We couldn't recess this till
Friday if everybody's available after the Council meeting? Just a thought.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well. . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I mean we're on a time crunch.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I leave my Fridays open, usually, for just this purpose.
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, like I said, that would be the only other option. It's nothing that...hopefully,
on the 12 th, we will come to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, no, I'm talking about this Friday coming up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The 6 th .
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, this Friday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The

6 th .

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The 6.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That gives you some time. If everybody's available. If everybody's
not available, then that's a moot point.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm not gonna have time to get the information that has been asked for. I won't be
able to get it together by that time, that's what I worry about.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: There's too much that has come up that is going to take some time to answer -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR CARROLL: --but thank you for the suggestion. This Council meeting...
MS. NAKATA: Oh, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes?
MS. NAKATA: I believe when the poll was done for September 12 th , it didn't.. .we didn't poll for the
entire day.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You only polled for half day. I was going to bring that up before
you adjourned, Mr. Chair. We are polled for half day.
MS. NAKATA: It might be helpful to know whether the Members are available for the...
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, alright. We polled for a half day. I meant that to be for the full day. Well,
we'll have at least half a day; and, hopefully, we can go the full day. But perhaps we can finish
in half a day, hopefully. We will cross that bridge when it comes to us on the 12 111 .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, what's the deadline? What's our last drop-dead date that it
has to get through Council?
CHAIR CARROLL: That would be the 20 th, I believe, or...
MS. NAKATA: The 45 days expires October 10 th , so we're looking at the October 4th Council meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, I want you to know that I will work with you to try to make as
much time available as possible as long as the Members are available. So if you want to sneak in
something along the way, then let us know and we'll poll. Because we are on a timetable, and I
am not a dreamer, we will not finish on the morning of the 12 th .
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Thank you, Chair Members, I said we would adjourn at 4:30, it's
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4:32. This Land Use Committee meeting of the 4 th of September, 2013 stands adjourned.
. . .(gavel). . .

ACTION:

DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

ADJOURN: 4:32 p.m.
APPROVED:

6.14

ROBERT CARROLL, CHAIR
Land Use Committee
lu:min:130904:ry
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